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PRELI M NARY STATENMENT

This proceeding involves the appeal of the circuit court’s
denial of M. Vining’s nmotion for postconviction relief after a
limted evidentiary hearing. The notion was brought pursuant to
Fla. R Crim P. 3.850. The type size and style in this brief is
12 pt. New Courier.

The follow ng symbols will be used to designate references

to the record:
“R.” -- record on direct appeal;

“PC-R. "-- record on 3.850 appeal to this Court.

REQUEST FOR ORAL ARGUMENT

M. Vining has been sentenced to death. The resolution of
the issues involved in this action will determ ne whether he
lives or dies. This Court has not hesitated to all ow oral
argument in other capital cases in a simlar procedural posture.
A full opportunity to air the issues through oral argunent would
be nore than appropriate in this case, given the seriousness of
the clainms involved and the stakes at issue. M. Freeman,

t hrough counsel, accordingly urges that the Court permt oral

argunment .
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The Circuit Court of the Ninth Judicial Circuit in Orange
County, Florida entered the judgnments of convictions and
sentences under consideration. M. Vining was charged by
| ndi ct ment on Case No. CR89-2395 with first-degree nmurder and
arnmed robbery on June 5, 1989 (R 2196-97). M. Vining was
represented by Orange County Public Defenders, Patricia Cashman
and Kelly Sins.

On July 6, 1989, the Clerk of Court for the N nth Judici al
Circuit filed M. Vining’ s Request for Disposition of Indictnent
under the Interstate Agreement on Detainers (R 1689, 2200-04).
On January 4, 1990, M. Vining filed a Motion to Di scharge Based
on Interstate Agreenent on Detainers because the State of Florida
failed to bring himto trial within 180 days of his Request for
Di sposition of Detainers and/or within 120 days of the date M.
Vining arrived in Florida (R 2328-30). The State sought an
extension of time in which to try M. Vining (R 2333, 2341).
The Court denied M. Vining’s Mdtion to Di scharge on January 16,
1990 (R 1661-1721, 2343-46), and granted the State’'s Motion for
Extension of Time in which to try M. Vining on January 22, 1990
(R 20). That sane day, voir dire began.

Trial started on January 22, 1990. Judge Joseph P. Baker
presided over the trial. This was his first and only death

penalty case (PC-R 123).



On February 1, 1990, a jury convicted M. Vining of both
counts (R 1653). The penalty phase took place a nonth |ater on
March 7-8, 1990. The jury recommended death by a vote of el even
to one. By special verdicts, the jury found that the crinme was
commtted while M. Vining was under a sentence of inprisonnent;
that M. Vining had previously been convicted of a violent
felony; that the crime was commtted while M. Vining was engaged
in a robbery; and that the nurder was cold, calculated and
prenmeditated (R 2613-14). The court sentenced M. Vining to
death on April 9, 1990 (R 2188-91, 2630-37).

A tinely appeal was taken to this Court. This Court
del i berated al nost three (3) years before issuing its opinion
affirmng M. Vining s convictions and sentence of death. Vining
v. State, 637 So. 2d 921 (Fla. 1994). This Court struck the
cold, calculated and preneditated aggravating factor. M. Vining
filed a petition for certiorari in the United States Suprene

Court, which was deni ed. Vining v. Florida, 115 S. Ct. 589

(1994) .

Pursuant to Rule 3.851, M. Vining’ s Mdtion for
Post conviction Relief was due one year fromthe denial of his
writ of certiorari, or on Novenmber 28, 1995. This Court granted
an extension of tinme for the filing of M. Vining' s
postconviction nmotion up to and including March 26, 1996. M.

Vining filed a notion for postconviction relief on March 26, 1996



(PC-R. 715-736). An anended notion for postconviction relief was
filed on Decenmber 23, 1996 (PC-R. 1598-1715). Judge Theotis
Bronson presided over the postconviction proceedings after Judge
Baker disqualified hinmself (PC-R 812-22).

M. Vining filed a Motion to Strike State’s Response and to
Deny State’'s Motion as Tinely Filed when the State’s Answer was
filed out of time. The State’'s Answer was striken on June 25,
1997, but the hearing court allowed the State to participate in
oral arguments (PC-R  1962-63).

A Huff hearing was held on June 20, 1997 (PC-R 1-130). The
hearing court determ ned that an evidentiary hearing was
necessary, but only on one full claimand a portion of two
ot hers. Judge Bronson granted a hearing on ClaimVl - Brady v.
Maryl and claim and portions of ClaimIX and X only as to
al l egations of counsel’s failure to object to the trial judge's
consi deration of extra-record material not presented in open
court; and the trial judge s independent investigation (PC
R.1970-71). The remainder of M. Vining' s clains were summarily
deni ed.

An evidentiary hearing was held on April 21-22, 1999 (PC-R
170-506). M. Vining' s postconviction notion was denied on
November 2, 1999 (PC-R. 2481-2509). Notice of Appeal was filed

on Novenber 29, 1999 (PC-R 2513). This appeal is tinmly mde.



St at enment of Facts

On Decenber 8, 1987, surveyors discovered the partially
deconmposed body of a woman lying fully-clothed in a renote grassy
area in Apopka, Florida (R 933-34). It was determ ned through
dental records that the body was that of Georgia Caruso, owner of
a fingernail salon. As a side business, Ms. Caruso sold
whol esal e di anonds out of her salon (R 908-917). Caruso had
been shot two times in the head (R 973-75). The nedi cal
exam ner testified that unconsci ousness occurred i nmedi ately and
she did not regain consciousness prior to her death (R 992).
There were no other injuries.

The nedi cal exam ner testified that the death may have
occurred sonetime in the three weeks before her body was
di scovered. There were no signs of a struggle (R 970-72, 993-
94). Caruso’'s jewelry, purse and shoes were not found (R 967).

Joann Ward worked for Caruso as a nail technician at Nai
Expressions. Ward testified that Caruso sold jewelry on
consi gnnent by advertising in the newspaper (R 999-1004). Ward
testified that a man cane to the shop on Novenber 13, 1987 in
response to the ad and talked to Caruso for fifteen m nutes about
jewelry (R 1009-14). The man returned to the nail shop a few
days |l ater on Novenber 16, 1987 and again net with Caruso for
fifteen mnutes. This time, Caruso introduced the man as “George

WIlliams, a man interested in jewelry | have to sell.” (R 1014-



16). WIllianms returned to the shop again on Novenber 19, 1987,
tal ked to Caruso for fifteen mnutes and left (R 1016).

VWhen Ward returned after [unch on Novenber 19,1987, Caruso
asked her to acconpany her to meet with M. WIIlianms because he
wanted to purchase sone jewelry but first wanted to have it
apprai sed (R 1019). Ward usually carried a pistol in her purse
(R 1020-23). Wllianms arrived driving an ol der black Cadill ac.
Caruso | eft her pistol under the front seat of Ward s car before
wal king with Wllianms to the Wnter Park Gem Lab. Ward did not
acconmpany themto the appraisers (R 1026-32).

Ellen Zaffis and Kevin Donner at the Wnter Park Gem Lab had
done appraisals for Caruso (R 1073, 1151). Zaffis talked with
Caruso whil e Donner performed the appraisal of a 6.03 carat,
pear - shaped di anond nmounted in a ring, and a round 3.5 carat
di anond al so nounted. Both were appraised at $60,000 (R 1077-
80, 1155-56).

After the appraisal, Caruso and WIllianms returned to Ward’s
car. Caruso then told Ward that WIlIlianms had decided to buy the
stones and that they were going to the bank to put the noney in a
safe deposit box (R 1027-31). Ward returned to the nail salon
alone (R 1033-34). Caruso was wearing a two-piece black dress,
bl ack shoes, black earrings, a gold Rolex watch, an anniversary
ring, a solitaire engagenent ring, and the six carat pear-shaped

di anond ring. She carried a black purse (R 1018; 1074-75). She



was not seen or heard from again.

During the investigation of the case, the police had no
clues as to who commtted the crime. The police obtained witten
statements from four w tnesses, Ward, Donner, Zaffis and Denise
Vietti. Not being satisfied with their vague descriptions of
W Illianms, the police decided to hypnotize the witnesses (R
1738). Lt. Watson, a police officer, testified that he
hypnoti zed only Vietti and the rest of the wi tnesses were only
given a “relax and recall” session (R 1731-33, 1739-40).

At a hearing on a Mdtion to Exclude Hypnotically-Tainted
Evi dence, Lt. Watson testified that the difference between
hypnotizing a witness and relax and recall was “the intent, as
far as I’m concerned, and what | amtrying to do with the
person.” (R 1732-34). He said he used a Chevault’s pendulumto
bring his subjects under on all w tnesses except Zaffis.

Kevin Donner stated that he had been hypnotized, but
realized after discussing the subject with his therapist that he
had not (R 1124-25). Ell en Zaffis, Donner’s roommate and
busi ness partner, testified that she gave an initial statenent to
police but approximately a nonth |ater, after being subjected to
a “relax and recall” session with Lt. Watson, said she was able
to assist with a conposite sketch (R 1769).

Denise Vietta did not testify, either at the trial or at the



hearing on the Mdtion to Exclude because she had been
“hypnotized.” Joann Ward testified that she gave a taped
statenent before the hypnosis session and deni ed bei ng hypnotized
(R 1741-45). Judge Baker denied the Mdtion to Exclude
Hypnoti cal | y- Tai nted Evi dence finding that the wi tnesses had not

been hypnotized based on Stokes v. State, 548 So. 2d 188 (Fl a.

1989). (R 1780-83). Judge Baker expl ained that his perception
of what constitutes hypnosis was tenpered by his own research
into psychiatry, including self-hypnosis, which was the subject
of an article he was preparing for publication (R 135-41).

Trial counsel objected to the presentation of these
W tnesses at trial, but failed to cross-exam ne the w tnesses on
the fact that they had been hypnotized to enhance their recal
(R. 1083-85). The jury never knew the w tnesses identifying M.
Vining in court, two years after the crinme was commtted, had
been “rel axed and recalled” or “hypnotized.”

The police did not begin investigating M. Vining in
connection with this case until two years after the crinme was
commtted. They found M. Vining in prison in Georgia an
unrel ated crinme, but they |l earned that Georgia had an i nmate who
used an inhaler for an asthma condition. The police put together
a photopak including M. Vining’ s picture in the line-up and
showed it to their hypnosis/rel axati on enhanced wi tnesses. Wth

varyi ng degrees of certainty, Zaffis and Ward sel ected M.



Vining’s picture. 1In court, Donner, Zaffis and Ward each
identified M. Vining unequivocally. (R 1039-46, 1066-71, 1086-
90, 1100-02, 1156-57).

The State presented phone records purporting to show that
the nunmber Ms. Caruso had in her personal notebook for George
WIlliams was one digit off fromthe phone number of Vining's
son’s house (R 1036-38, 1062-65).

The State presented the testinony of Joe Tayl or, another
amat eur di anond seller, who stated that he had received a phone
call froma man naned “Billy Byrd” who wanted to buy di anonds.
M. Byrd described as 58" tall with gray hair, 56 or 57 years
old with glasses (R 1178). Taylor was suspicious when the man
refused to give a return phone nunber and wanted to | ook at al
the jewelry he had (R 1179). Taylor did not neet the man

because he thought he was being “set up.” (R 1172-73, 1180-82).
The State al so presented testinony that M. Vining had been
driving his nmother’s 1978 Cadillac in Novenber 1987. The car was
found burned in a rock pit in Marion County in Decenber, 1987 (R
1344, 1350).
The State al so presented a convoluted and tortured story
about a common yellow 1.13 carat dianond that was sold by M.
Vi ning on Novenber 19, 1987 for approximtely $600. 00(R 1222-

27). The dianond was recut to elimnate a large flaw and sold as

aring to Mchael Merola (R 1230). Detective Nazarchuk



retrieved the dianond fromthe Merolas and showed the dianond to
John and Elizabeth Slade, the owners of Colunbia Jewelers. Two
years later and w thout the benefit of mapping the dianond, they
identified the dianond as being one they consigned to Mark Ryan
on Novenber 17, 1987 (R 1193, 1196-99, 1212-15). The Sl ades
remenmber the di anond because it was a “rare, green dianond with
an identifying feature inside the top of the stone.” (R 1193-95,
1204- 05, 1208-15).

Ryan testified that he obtained the 1.13 carat dianond from
the Slades and gave it to Caruso on Novenber 17, 1987 for her to
sell (R 1218-19). No expert testinony was offered to
di stingui sh between the common yell ow di anond sold by M. Vining
for $600 and the extrenely val uabl e green-tinged di anond
consigned to Mark Ryan, which had a nuch hi gher value that the
di amond sold by M. Vining. Thi s di anbnd was not anong the ones
exam ned by Zaffis and Donner when Ms. Caruso canme in the Wnter
Park Gem Lab with George WIIians. This circunstantial evidence
was the only evidence that was used to sentence M. Vining to
deat h.

SUMVARY OF ARGUMENT

1. The State withheld material excul patory evidence that
woul d have provided significant inpeachment evidence to rebut the
State’s case. Undisclosed police notes show that the victim

carried no | oose stones. This rebutted the state’s theory that



the diamond sold by M. Vining was the notive dianmond. Police
notes al so show that the descriptions of the suspect seen with
CGeorgia Caruso changed several tinmes dependi ng on whether the
statenments were taken before or after the “relax and recall”
sessions by the Sheriff’s Departnment hypnotist. M. Ward saw
detectives eight tinmes before nmaking an identification and then
only after a “relax and recall” session. The State argued in
cl osing that defendant’s car was burned to hide evidence. But,
the State withheld the FBI report that proved that no hair or
fiber fromthe victimexisted in the car. The State withheld the
excul patory FBI report that showed the fibers did not match the
car. Both defense attorneys testified this information was
excul patory and material and woul d have been valuable to its
case. This testinmny was unrebutted by the State. Relief was
proper.

2. M. Vining was denied his right to a fair and
inpartial tribunal during his capital guilt and penalty phases.
Def ense counsel’s unreasonable failure to object to the tri al
judge’ s consideration of extra-record information and seek

recusal was ineffective assi stance of counsel under Gardner V.

Florida, 430 U.S. 349 (1977), and Porter v. State, 400 So.2d 5

(Fla. 1987). The trial court abused its discretion when it
failed to grant a new tri al

3. The hearing court erred in summarily denying the

10



i neffective assistance of counsel at guilt phase claimas
procedurally barred despite sharing sonme of the sane facts
regardi ng Judge Baker’s consideration of extra-record information
that a hearing was granted on. The court also erred in denying
postconvi ction counsel access to a public record, State’s exhibit
16, to map the notive dianond. Had he been granted access and a
hearing on this claim M. Vining would have presented expert
testinmony that the dianond that is State’'s exhibit 16 could not
have been the same di anond consigned to the victimprior to her
death. The files and records do not conclusively show that M.
Vining was not entitled to relief. The hearing court failed to
attach any portions of the records that show why M. Vining is
not entitled to a hearing.

4. M. Vining was denied an adversarial testing during the
penal ty phase of his capital trial. The hearing court erred in
failing to grant an evidentiary hearing on this entire claim
because the files and records do not conclusively establish that
M. Vining is entitled to no relief.

5. The hearing court erred in summarily denying M.
Vining's clainms of ineffective assistance of counsel for trial
counsel’s failure to object to constitutional error.

6. Florida Rule of Crimnal Procedure 3.851 is
unconstitutional on its face and as applied to the facts of M.

Vining s case.

11



7. Florida’ s death penalty statute is unconstitutional.

8. M. Vining is innocent of the death penalty.

9. Florida rules that prohibit juror interviews is
unconstitutional and unfair.

10. M. Vining was denied a full direct appeal review
because the appellate record in his case was inconplete.

11. M. Vining' s absence during critical stages of the

proceedi ngs was constitutional error and counsel was ineffective
for failing to ensure his presence.

12. Prosecutorial msconduct rendered M. Vining s trial
fundanmental ly unfair and introduced inproper collateral crines
into the jury's consideration.

13. M. Vining was denied access to public records that
ot her defendants simlarly situated have been provided.

14. The hearing court erred in analyzing each claim
separately instead of considering the cunmulative effect that al
of these errors had on M. Vining' s jury.

ARGUNMENT |

THE HEARI NG COURT FAI LED TO PROPERLY CONSI DER EVI DENCE

THAT PROVES MR. VI NI NG S | NNOCENCE SUCH AS MATERI AL AND

EXCULPATORY EVI DENCE W THHELD BY THE STATE.

The State wi thheld key excul patory materials fromthe
def ense. This was proven at the evidentiary hearing. Police

notes not provided to the defense show that nail technician,

Joanne Ward told the police that the victimdid not have any

12



“l oose stones” with her on Novenmber 18, 1987. This was contrary
to the testinmony of Mark Ryan and Kevin Donner. This evidence
elimnated the alleged motive for the crine. The State argued
that M. Vining robbed Ms. Caruso of a |oose 1.13 carat green-

ti nged dianond. Yet, defense counsel had nothing to rebut this
al l egation. This was inportant excul patory i npeachnent evi dence.

Police notes also not disclosed to the defense provide
i npeachnment evi dence agai nst Joann Ward. According to Detective
Nazar chuk’s notes, Joann Ward’ s version of the tinme of day that
the victimdi sappeared was inconsistent with all other versions
of the day’s events that were given to police. This
i nconsi stency woul d have been used by trial counsel to question
t he accuracy and nenory of Ms. Ward on the day the victim
di sappear ed.

Police notes not disclosed to the defense proved M. Donner
was not paying attention to the victimand George WIlIlians
because he was appraising the dianonds. These notes show t hat
Donner’s identification of M. Vining as a suspect was
i npeachabl e because of his inattention and his brief encounter
with “George WIllianms.” Defense counsel could have used these
notes to inpeach Donner’s testinony that it was a “very nenorable
conversation.”

M. Vining also was not provided with police notes from

Decenber 17, 1987 regarding wi tnesses Joann Ward, Ellen Zaffis
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and Kevin Donner concerning their descriptions of the man seen

with Ms. Caruso. These notes inpeached the consistency of the

identifications of M. Vining by Zaffis, Ward and Donner before
and after their hypnosis sessions with police.

The State also withheld an FBI analysis of a car fiber found
on the victinms blouse. This analysis showed the fiber did not
mat ch any hair or fiber relating to M. Vining. The FBI report
was never disclosed to the defense. A conplete copy of the
victim s notebook in which she recorded her jewelry sal es and
contacts al so was never provided to the defense until it was
entered into evidence by the State at trial. No police notes
were disclosed froman interview between M. Donner and Captain
Hunter of the Wnter Park Police Departnent, even though
Detecti ves Nazarchuk and Gay testified that they had “everything”
fromthe Wnter Park Police Departnent. These notes which Donner
referred to in his deposition were never turned over to the
def ense.

The “wi thheld” evidence was “material” to notive and
identification, and shoul d have been provided to defense counsel.
These Brady viol ati ons have been proven. The only issue is the
extent of the prejudice suffered by M. Vining.

The hearing court agreed that the Brady material had been
withheld by the State, but the court held was not material and

found no prejudice to M. Vining' s case (PC-R 2488). The
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hearing court is wrong.

The hearing court used the wong analysis and failed to
consi der the inpact of this withheld information on the jury.
The jury never heard information that was obviously excul patory
to M. Vining. At the evidentiary hearing, M. Vining proved
that the prosecutors failed to disclose excul patory evi dence that
was material and could have been used to i npeach the key state’s
W t nesses who testified about the nmotive di anond and the
description and identifications of M. Vining.

The testinony of Ward, Zaffis, and Donner, was critical to
the state’'s case. Had their testinony and identifications not
been so critical, the State woul d not have gone to such | engths
to hypnotize/relax the witnesses to get nore incrimnating
i nformation.

These witnesses testified that they saw M. Vining with the
victimon the day she disappeared (R 1044, 1087, 1156). Each
witness testified at trial that he had seen and identified photos
of M. Vining before trial. Wat the jury did not know was t hat
each wi tness had been hypnotized or was placed under “relax and
recall,” a formof hypnosis. After the hypnosis sessions, the
w tnesses worked with a sketch artist to construct a conposite
sketch of the man they believed was with the victimon the day

she di sappeared.?

M. Vining was not given an evidentiary hearing on guilt
phase i neffective assistance of counsel where he all eged that

15



Any evidence that would have led to i npeachnent evi dence
agai nst these witnesses was critical because these were the only
Wi tnesses to identify M. Vining in court and were the only

wi tnesses who could link the | oose notive dianmond to M. Vining.
Wthout this critical evidence, the state’ s already tenuous
circunstantial case would crunble. The defense attorneys agreed:

Q In your estimation, who were the critical state’'s
Wi tnesses in this case?

MR. SI MS: Well, | cannot tell you nanes. |’ve not
| ooked at a file on this case since 1990.

| do know that there were these relax and refreshed
eyewi t nesses that were critical, | believe two in a jewelry
store where Georgia had been earlier and where this M.

Wl liams had been. So they were eyew tnesses that had been,
| think, refreshed.

There was circunstantial evidence in the way of the
Cadi |l l ac that had burned and phone calls and the
selling of a dianond some days after the death of
Georgi a.

Q So woul d any evidence that inpeached the

trial counsel failed to adequately inpeach Ward with Detective

Payne’ s deposition where he said,”l know that she said that she
had seen him before, but as far as, you know, being able to
positively identify him no, she could not do that.” Payne

Deposition at page 17. Notes of Detective Nazarchuk indicated

t hat Ward was “uncertain and unable to make a positive
identification” on February 15, 1989. Police Departnment notes
dated June 5, 1989 also indicate “Ward does not i1dentify Vining.”
However, at trial, Ward identified M. Vining and deni ed ever
bei ng uncertain about her identification (R 1045-46).
Nazarchuk’s notes al so indicated that Ward's description of the
man she saw with Caruso differed fromher trial testinony. At
trial, Ward testified that the man had a “long face, kind of

| oose skin right here in the neck area.” (R 1010). Nazarchuk’s
notes reveal no nention of a “long face” and Ward' s earlier
inability to describe the man’s “chin area.”
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credibility of these particular w tnesses have been
i nportant for you to get?

MR. SI MS: Absol utely.

Q And woul d you have consi dered that excul patory
evi dence that was beneficial to your defense and at

| east woul d have assisted in your inmpeachnment of the
state’s case?

MR. SI MS: Anything that didn’'t - - anything that
said I"mnot sure | thought was so inportant in this
case because we had an eyewitness who in ny mnd wasn’t
a very good eyew tness anyway because of the way they
had gotten that information up. And specifically with
respect to the gentleman who had been exam ning the

di anond on that day and |I think |I did the cross of that
i ndi vi dual .

(PC-R. 48-49).

The State knew that the credibility of these witnesses was
vital. The State withheld Detectives Gay and Nazarchuk’s
handwitten notes that contained excul patory inpeachment

evidence. This was a clear violation of Brady v. Maryl and, 373

U.S. 83 (1963). These notes were material and, as the defense
attorneys testified to at the evidentiary hearing, would have
been used at trial.

More inportantly, the notes reflected that the victimwas
not carrying “loose” or unmounted di anonds on the day she
supposedly di sappeared. If this were true, then the notive
di anond was not in the victims possession. No |oose dianonds.
No notive.

Due to the State’s actions, M. Vining was denied the

opportunity to exam ne Joann Ward about her observati ons because
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the state did not disclose this excul patory informtion.
| nstead, Ward testified at trial that the victimdid have | oose
stones. Trial counsel remenbered:

Q Do you recall what the significance of that
[ di amond evi dence] was?

MR. SI MS: Well, shortly after the di sappearance of
Ms. Caruso, a dianond was sold by M. Vining. And

al though no one had ever done an actual diagram of the
di anond that | believe Georgia was selling on behalf of
this di anond shop down on Park Avenue, Col unmbia

Jewel ers, nobody had actually done a diagram per se but
sonmebody was | ooking at that dianmond saying, well, it
seens very simlar. They couldn’'t say it was exact is
my understandi ng, ny belief, ny renmenbrance. And that
was a | oose stone.

And | renmenber that - - that that stone from
Col unbi a Jewel ers was a, | thought a pretty devastating
link in a chain. But | never thought that they really
proved that was the same di anond.

Q Al right. So any evidence that you had that showed
that Ms. Ward,[sic] in fact, did not possess any | oose
di anonds on the day she di sappeared?

MR. SI MS: ....l never had any evidence that Ms.
Caruso didn’'t have any | oose di anbnds on the day in
guesti on.

Q And do you recall whether or not the only

di anonds that supposedly were exam ned by M. Donner
were | oose di anonds or di anonds that were nounted in
rings?

MR. S| Ms: Everyt hing nounted, everything was
mounted i s what Donner had exam ned.

Q So there was a question regardi ng whet her or not
she, in fact, possessed | oose stones on the day that
she di sappeared?

MR. SI MS: Ri ght .

Q Woul d this not have been hel pful to you in
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i npeaching the credibility of Ms. Ward if she testified
contrary to that?

MR. SI MS: Yes. |If she testified contrary.
(PC-R 54-55).

Def ense counsel would have used the information to inpeach
the credibility of the state’s witnesses. These state w tnesses
were even questionable in Judge Baker’s mnd to such an extent
that he decided to do his own investigation. See, Argunent II.
Judge Baker testified at the evidentiary hearing that he ordered
the victinmis probate records from Sem nole County to hel p nake
the State’s case “nore clear.” The records for Sem nol e County
inventoried the remaining jewelry that Ms. Caruso’s estate was
require to return to its owners.

At trial, Kevin Donner also was a key w tness who identified
M. Vining as the man with the victimon the day that she
di sappeared. He identified M. Vining from phot ographs before
the trial and again in court. However, the jury did not know
that his ability to observe the suspect was questionabl e because
a police note withheld fromthe defense showed he was in the back
of the store and not paying attention to Ms. Caruso and her
client. The withheld notes said he was concentrating on
eval uating the rings.

Q ....Do you recall having access to that

particul ar note during your preparation for M.

Donner’s cross-exam nation?

MR. SI Ms: No.
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Q Do you recall that there was an issue as
to...the attentiveness that he was show ng towards the
suspect when he cane in the door, would that have
assisted you in your cross-exam nation of that w tness?

MR. Sl MS: Yes, M’ am

Q Woul d that have assisted you in inpeaching his
credibility regarding any descriptions that he may have
subsequently given?

MR, SI MS: Yes.

Q And if you recall, was this contrary to what his
testinmony was at trial?

MR. SI MS: | believe, and you may need to refresh
me, | don’t know, | believe the testinony was that, oh,

| saw this individual and |I asked, isn’'t it true that
your job there was to evaluate the dianonds, that’s
what you were busy doing in the back room you were
eval uati ng di anonds.

And | believe the fellow said, no, but the door was
open and | was wat ching him

And this note that says guy nore interested in dianond
and didn’t pay much attention, in back with rings,
woul d have been inportant in those two areas for two
reasons, | think on that one, | could very well ask M.
Donner and perhaps object to, |I don't know, isn't it
true that you told Detective Nazarchuk you were nore
interested in the dianmobnds and you were in back with
the rings or certainly we could have call ed Nazurchuk
back to the stand and said or actually got that out of
Nazarchuk in cross-exam nation, isn't it true that M.
Donner told you he was nore interested in the di anonds.

* % %

Q Okay. And would the note that was not given to
you have hel ped in inpeaching his testinony at trial?

MR. S| Ms: Yes, Ma'am
Q And if you will look further in there that you
did ask sone questions concerning the attentiveness of

M . Donner during the exam nation but did you have any
hard evi dence on which to inpeach hinf
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MR. SI MS: I was unaware of any hard evi dence that

said anything different than - - | nean, nothing that I

could show this witness to say isn't it true...

- - you were nore interested in the dianond, you were

in the back with the rings, you never nentioned that

you could see himthe whole tinme while you did your

wor k.
(PC-R 49-52).

Had defense counsel had the Brady material on M. Donner,
cross exam nation would have been conpelling. Before hypnosis,
M . Donner viewed only an Identi-Kit of a possible suspect. M.
Donner did not | ook at any photographs of the suspect until after
hypnosis (PC-R State’'s Ex. 11 at pgs. 29-30). In his deposition
after hypnosis, Donner magically renenbered another tinme that he
m ght have seen the suspect weeks before the crinme outside a
jewelry store (PC-R State’'s Ex. 11, R 2891).

At trial, M. Donner identified M. Vining as the suspect.
This identification was only nade after he was hypnotized by the
Orange County Sheriff’'s Ofice (R 1156). Contrary to the Brady

evi dence that has now been disclosed, M. Donner told the jury at

trial that he was able to see the suspect “during the whole

time.” “He was visible at all tinmes; both of themwere.” (R
1158-59). Def ense counsel had nothing to i npeach himwth
except inferences. The detective s notes said:

Guy nmore interested in dianonds. Kev--didn't pay nuch
attention.

(PC-R. Defense Ex. 1-3).
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This note was the hard evi dence the defense needed to

i npeach Donner. Under Brady, evidence that tends to inpeach a
critical state witness is clearly material. See, Smth v.

Wai nwight, 741 F. 2d 1248, 1256 (11t Cir. 1984); Brown v.

Wai nwright, 785 F. 2d 1457, 1465 (11" Cir. 1986).

The detective s notes also revealed that Joann Ward told the
detectives that the victimgot into the suspect’s car and |eft
about 9:00 a.m on Novenber 18, 1987. This was inconsistent with
all other versions of the day’'s events given to police. Defense
counsel testified that this three-hour tinme difference between
Ms. Ward's trial testinony and the Brady evidence could have been
used to inpeach the credibility of Ms. Ward had it been provided
to counsel (PC-R 53-54). This is the sane witness who saw
detectives eight tines before testifying at trial. This was the
same witness who identified a picture of George WIlianms and was
85% sure it was the suspect.? The tinme discrepancy and the “no

| oose stones” statenent in the detective' s notes were made before

Det ectives King and Rettig of the Wnter Park Police
Department showed a driver’s license photo of a possible suspect,
GCeorge S. Wlliams to Ward and Vietti on Novenber 23, 1987.
Detective England testified that Ward and Vietti were “85% sure”
that this was the man seen with Caruso (Engl and Deposition at pg.
8). In cross, trial counsel questioned the witness on her
earlier inability to identify a suspect. Ward denied any nmenory
of her uncertainty and the previous identification (R 1045-46).
Trial counsel failed to refresh her nenory or inpeach her on this
evidence. This is included in the ineffective assistance of
counsel claimat guilt phase where no evidentiary hearing was
gr ant ed.
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t he hypnosi s session.

After hypnosis, the descriptions of the suspect and the car
changed. After the hypnosis session, Ms. Ward renenbered nore
details about the car. Specifically, she renmenbered where the
antennae were (R 2707). Before hypnosis, Ms. Ward told
Detective Gay there were no | oose stones in the victims
possession. After hypnosis, she does not nention | oose stones
and has no specific time in which she saw the victimleave with
the suspect. Cf. (PC-R Def. Ex. 6; 12/27/87 Ward statenment at
13: 00 hours and at 14:30 hours).

By the time Ms. Ward testified at trial, her description of
the suspect is different yet again. In the withheld Decenber 17,
1987 statenent-— no |long face, no |oose skin.(R 1010). Her
testi mony about the victins departure tine is inconsistent (R
1017). More inportantly, Ms. Ward testifies under oath that the
victimhad “sonme | oose di anonds” when she [eft the store with the
suspect (R 1021). This Brady information was materi al and
excul patory to the issue of notive and identification. Defense
counsel testified that they would have used this information to
i npeach the witness’s credibility on descriptions and notive (PC-
R. 174-75). Confidence in the reliability of the outcone is
underm ned. This om ssion cannot be harm ess in the context of
this highly circunstantial case.

The State knowingly allowed this m sleading evidence to go
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uncorrected and consciously wi thheld the excul patory informtion
from defense counsel despite request for the information
contained in the detective notes.

Q Did there conme a time during his [Nazarchuk’ s]
deposition that you thought perhaps you had not gotten
all the discovery you were entitled to?

MS. CASHMVAN: Yes. When | was questioning Detective
Nazarchuk | spent a great deal of tinme trying to elicit
fromhimthe details surrounding the interview ng of
these witnesses. He had notes, and as | questioned him
during the depo, he needed to refer to his notes
because a | ot of what was in his notes was not in his
report.

Q Did he tell you that some of the infornmation was
not in his reports?

MS. CASHMAN: Yes, | believe that he did. The state
was present. The state, as | recall, it was M. Hebert
who was there, and he was very adamant that | not

actually get copies of the detective's notes, and what

| was trying to do since they would not give ne the
notes was get the information so that | could use it in
conducting other depositions, use it in terms of giving
my investigator suggestions and instructions on follow
up work for her to do, and |earn everything | could
about the state’s case so | could prepare to represent
M. Vining at trial.

Q \Were you able to do that, were you able to get the
information from Detective Nazarchuk?

MS. CASHMAN: | have since learned | was not. |
| earned through this notion being filed that there were
notes and there was information contained in those
notes and I in fact was not provided that information
duri ng deposition or during the course of - -

(PC-R. 172-73) (enphasi s added).
Def ense requested the detective's notes. Trial counsel

suspected the notes contai ned excul patory material, but M.
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Hebert, the assistant state attorney, refused to disclose them

even after a request. Under Kyles v. Wiitley, 514 U S. 419

(1995), know edge of the excul patory information is inputed to

t he prosecutor whether or not they have actual know edge of the
information fromthe | aw enforcenment agency. By any definition
of Brady, M. Vining was entitled to have this excul patory

i nformati on.

The State also failed to disclose an excul patory FBI report
t hat showed negative results in the testing of car fiber in M.
Vining's car and a fiber on the victinis bl ouse. Again, defense
counsel testified that they had not been provided this benefici al

pi ece of evidence.

Q Showi ng you what has been marked as Defense
Exhi bit four, have you seen that report before?
MS. CASHMVAN: | don’t believe so. No.

Q Was one of the issues in your case that the

def endant’ s car had been found burning in Ccal a
sometine after the victim s nane had been rel eased?

MS. CASHMVAN: Yes. | renmenber the state sending ne
| ots of pictures, and | went to Ocala to take sone
depositions, | believe of a fire inspector and | don’t

know who el se. The car, yes, was an issue in the case.

Q Would it have been inportant for you to know if
there was evidence that had been tested by the FDLE
[sic] Lab that turned up no positive conparison between
your client, or his car and the victim would that be
sonet hi ng you woul d have wanted to present?

MS. CASHMVAN: That woul d have been critical, because
the state’'s theory was the car was burnt to destroy
evidence, and if we could have been able to show the
state’s theory was wong it would have given us nore
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reason to argue, reasonable doubt, and is that the
state had not nmet its burden of proof and that, in
fact, their theory was specul ation rather than
sonet hi ng based on evi dence.
(PC-R. 186) (enphasi s added).
Despite filing nunmerous discovery demands, the State failed to
turn over this critical FBI report (PC-R Def.Ex.11, Notice of
Di scovery; Def. Ex. 12 State’'s Response to Demand for Discovery).
Had counsel been provided with this piece of evidence, she would

have presented it to the jury.

Q (BY MR LERNER) And the fiber could have cone from
anywhere, could have been blown fromthe w ndow on the

body - -
MS. CASHMVAN: | was just told by you to assunme it
cane from Georgia Caruso, so reading the report if I'm

to assunme the fiber came from Georgia, the report tells
me you cannot connect Caruso and Vining based on the
FBI' s exam nation, you would be connecting Georgia
Caruso to soneone el se.

Q Well, actually you wouldn’t be connecting Georgia
Caruso to anybody based on that report, would you?

MS. CASHMVAN: | woul d be connecting Georgia Caruso
to sonmeone other than John Bruce Vining, because the
fiber did not match John Bruce Vining.

Q That particular rug?
MS. CASHMVAN: Yes, based on the assunptions | was
told to answer the questions under. It would tell nme

t hat Georgia Caruso fiber does not connect to John
Bruce Vining, client on trial.

Q And you said that’s sonmething you woul d have
li ked to have presented or thought about or used, is
that correct?

MS. CASHMVAN: Absol utely. Absolutely. That would
be evidence that would exonerate nmy client, that woul d
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show t hat soneone el se had a connection to the
deceased.

(PC-R. 221-22).

Q (BY MR LERNER:) If one of the fibers - - from
CGeorgia Caruso’s bl ouse or wherever it cane from her
dress had matched sonething that could be |linked to M.
Vining, that woul d have been a significant fact. Wuld
it have not?

MR. SI MsS: Sur e.

Q But the fact that a fiber, polyester fiber in and
around her body did not match the rug is of no
consequence at all. Is it?

MR. SI MS: Well, | can tell you’ ve been a prosecutor

for a long tine.

If I have a firearmand there’'s a fingerprint on in but
it’s not by client’s, that’s inportant because there’'s
a fingerprint that’s not ny client’s.

And you say that - - that was the gun that was used in
the robbery, if you have a fiber on the body of a
person and you' re assunmi ng that either canme froma
crime scene or was |eft by an assailant, every little
bit, especially in a circunstantial state, every little
bit of reasonabl e doubt counts.

So in a situation |like that, you say, well, sonebody
left that fiber and, of course, you can rebut it as the
prosecutor saying , well, you don’t even know t hat
fiber is a part of this case but we don’t know that it
isn't.

Q From that report, you have no idea where the

fiber came from Do you?

MR. SIMS: No. That’'s why you woul d have to have that
report to track it down and see if they - - when you
say fiber, | assume you are telling ne the fiber that
was on Ceorgia’ s person?

Q | believe that's what it says but | can go fetch
it.
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MR. SI MS: That’s all right. 1 don’t think that that
matters where it came fromas long as we can show t hat
it didnt cone from M. Vining because then | don’t
have to pick out who commtted the crine. | just say
it wasn’t him And so a fiber found on a body which,
you know, in nystery novels and in novies and in these
courts of law are always brought in to try to say this
links it up matters just as nmuch when it doesn’t |ink
it up and you have always the possibility as a
prosecutor to say that doesn’'t matter, she could have
picked it up sitting at the briar patch earlier that
nor ni ng.

(PC-R 91-92).
In its cross-exam nation at the evidentiary hearing, the
State attenpted to shift the burden to M. Vining to discover

whet her any hair or fiber fromthe car should have been tested

(PC-R. 222-23). This is not the test under Brady. It is the
state’s burden to turn over excul patory information. It is not

M. Vining’s responsibility to imagine that there nmay have been
excul patory FBI reports in the state’s possession. See, Kyles v.
Whitley, supra. The state cannot shirk its duties under Brady by
suggesting that it was M. Vining' s responsibility to have the
evi dence tested.

The United States Supreme Court has explained that in
addition to excul patory evidence, the Brady rule requires
di scl osure of evidence that m ght be used for inpeachnment

purposes. Gaglio v. United States, 405 U S. 150, 154 (1972).

| npeachment evidence is “evidence that is favorable to an
accused” where, if disclosed and used effectively, it my nake

the difference between conviction and acquittal, or affect the
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penalty. United States v. Bagley, 473 U S. 667, 676 (1985).

To establish materiality, a defendant need not establish
that the withheld information would have resulted in an
acquittal; he need only raise a reasonable probability that the
result woul d have been different. Bagley, 473 U.S. at 682. “A
reasonabl e probability is a probability sufficient to underm ne
confidence in the outconme.” Id. For exanple, in Jacobs v.

Singletary, 952 F. 2d 1282, 1289 (11 Cir. 1992), wthheld

evi dence was considered material because it “would have provided
the defense with nore than nmerely insignificant suppl enmental
support for cross-exam nation purposes.”

Just as this Court held in Young v. State, 739 So. 2d 553

(Fla. 1999), the wthheld docunents in this case were material to
M. Vining’s defense. The state has not disputed the existence
or the content of these w thheld docunents.
Judge Bronson conceded that the State failed to disclose
this information (PC-R 2487-88).
However, Judge Bronson erroneously anal yzed each piece of Brady
i nformati on separately and never considered the cunul ative effect
of all of the Brady violations. The hearing court found that:
However, even if Ward's testinony on this issue
had been severely inpeached or excluded entirely, other
evidence in the record provides strong support for the
conclusion that the “notive dianond” was in the
victim s possession the day she di sappered. First,
w t ness Donner testified that although he didn't

appraise it, the victimhad a one carat round di anond
about which she asked a question (R 1155). Second,
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the witness Piantiera specifically described a rare

di anond whi ch she had purchased and given to w tness
Ryan to sell (R 1208-11). Wtness Ryan testified that
he gave this dianond, a | oose stone, to the victimon
t he day before she disappeared (R 1219). Further,

Wi t ness Jones testified that a man identified as the
Def endant sold this stone to himthe day after the
victim di sappeared (R 1222-26). In light of the
testimony of these four wi tnesses, the inpeachnent

val ue of Ward' s statenment was m nimal, and Def endant
cannot prove materiality as to this piece of evidence.

(PC-R. 2488) (enphasi s added).

Judge Bronson exam ned each individual note and report and
drew the same concl usion--they were not material (PC-R 2489-
2492). Apparently, Judge Bronson is nore confident in the
State’'s testinony than Judge Baker was at trial. Judge Baker was
so doubtful of the State's case that he felt forced to do his own
i nvestigation.

Judge Bronson al so used the wong analysis to deny the
claim The hearing court exam ned each Brady violation as to
whet her each single piece of evidence w thheld would have caused
a different outcome. Under Young and Kyles, this is incorrect.
Judge Bronson should have consi dered the potential cunulative
effect of the evidence on the jury’'s verdict. This Court in
Young specifically adopts the standards set out in Kyles:

On habeas review, we follow the established rule

that the state’s obligation under Brady v. Maryl and

(citation omtted) to disclose evidence favorable to

the defense, turns on the cunul ative effect of all such

evi dence suppressed by the governnment, and we hold that

t he prosecutor remmins responsi ble for gauging that

effect regardless of any failure by the police to bring
favorabl e evidence to the prosecutor’s attention.
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Bagl ey’ s touchstone of materiality is a
“reasonabl e probability” of a different result, and the
adjective is inportant. The question is not whether
t he defendant would nore |ikely than not have received
a different verdict with the evidence, but whether in
its absence he received a fair trial, understood as a
trial resulting in a verdict worthy of confidence. A
“reasonabl e probability” of a different result is
accordi ngly shown when the governnment’s evidentiary
suppressi on “underm nes confidence in the outconme of
the trial.” Young v. State, 739 So. 2d at 556 (Fla.
1999)(citing Kyles v. Wiitley, 514 U S. at 434).

Also, in Strickler v. Geene, 119 S. Ct. 1936 (1999), the

U.S. Suprene Court detailed the obligations of defense counsel to
show cause in failing to raise a Brady claim Its discussion is
directly anal ogous to the facts here:

If it is reasonable for trial counsel to rely on, not
just the presunption that the prosecutor would fully
performhis duty to disclose all excul patory materi al s,
but also the inplicit representation that such
materials would be included in the open files tendered
to defense counsel for their exam nation, we think such
reliance by counsel appointed to represent petitioner
in state habeas proceedi ngs was equal ly reasonable...

... Although it is true that petitioner’s |awers - -
both at trial and in post-trial proceedings - - nust
have known that Stoltzfus [a state’s wi tness] had had
multiple interviews with police, it by no neans foll ows
that they would have known that records pertaining to
those interviews or that the notes that Stoltzfus sent
to the detective, existed and had been suppressed.

I ndeed, if the Commonwealth is correct that Exhibits 2,
7, and 8 were in the prosecutor’s ‘open file,” then it
is unlikely that counsel would have suspected that
addi ti onal inpeaching evidence was being wi thheld. The
prosecut or must have known about the newspaper articles
and Stoltzfus’ neetings with Claytor [a detective], yet
he did not believe that his prosecution file was

i nconpl et e.
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See, Strickler v. Greene at 119 S. Ct. at 1950.

The hearing court ignored the fact that Ms. Ward’ s testinony
at trial flatly contradicted the statenents it now suggests
def ense counsel should have known about.® The defense testified
at the evidentiary hearing that it had no affirmative statenment
by Ms. Ward that contradicted her trial testinony. |If they had
the withheld statenments, defense counsel would have used them
(PC-R. 174-75). The hearing court said it did not matter that
Kevin Donner said that Caruso nentioned another di anond she
want ed appraised. This fact was never inpeached because the
def ense did not know that Ms. Ward did not have | oose stones on
t he date she had Donner appraise only nounted di anond rings.
Therefore, the information was material to Donner and Ward. The
hearing court never addressed how one piece of information |ike

the “l oose stones” statenent can be used to inpeach several

The tine discrepancy and the “no | oose stones” statenent in
the detective s notes were nmade before the hypnosis session.
After hypnosis, the descriptions of the suspect and the car
changed. After the hypnosis session, Ms. Ward renenbered nore
details about the car. Specifically, she renmenbered where the
ant ennae was (R 2707). Unbeknownst to defense counsel, Ms.
Ward told Detective Gay before hypnosis there were no | oose
stones in the victims possession. After hypnosis, she does not
menti on | oose stones and has no specific time in which she saw
the victimleave with the suspect. Cf. 12/27/87 Ward st at enment
at 13: 00 hours and at 14:30 hours. By the tinme Ms. Ward
testified at trial, her description of the suspect is different
yet again. Cf. 12/17/87 statenment-— no |long face, no | oose skin.
(R 1010). Her testinmony about the victim s departure tinme is
i nconsistent (R 1017). More inportantly, Ms. Ward testifies
under oath that the victimhad “sone | oose di anonds” when she
left the store with the suspect (R 1021).
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w t nesses such as Donner and Ward. Judge Bronson never addressed
the interrelationship between the Brady evidence of Donner’s

i nattentiveness and the | oose stones statenent and the tine

di screpancies in Ward' s testinony. The trial attorneys testified
that the violations created reasonable doubt. There was no
evidence to the contrary. Judge Bronson cannot after the fact
suggest that the evidence was not inportant when the only

evi dence presented to himat the evidentiary hearing was that it
was “critical.”

M. Vining’s case was circunstantial and tenuous. No
confessions, jailhouse adm ssions or physical evidence |inked M.
Vining to this crime. He consistently and vehenently maintains
his innocence. While he admtted selling a dianond, the defense
argued that it could not have been the sane dianond that Ms.
Caruso supposedly possessed.

The testinony of the state’s witnesses consistently showed
that the dianond that Pianteri and others exam ned was a
greeni sh-tinged dianond. It was a unique stone and with its
di stinctiveness cane a concom tant high value. The dianond sold
by M. Vining was worth approxi mately $600, hardly the price that
woul d be brought by a rare green dianond. But, the jury did not
know t hat Ms. Caruso did not have in her possession on the day of
the crime “l oose stones.”

The two di anond rings eval uated by Kevin Donner were nuch
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| arger than the dianmond M. Vining sold. It is only logical that
a person with the crimnal intent to kill M. Caruso would take
the | arger dianond rings that would ultimately bring a higher
price. This discrepancy in the State’'s case is what made Ms.
Ward's testinmony so val uable and the w thhol ding of the evidence
so egregious. Wthout the notive dianond, there was no case.

Wt hout the dianond, there was no explanation for the crine.

The State went to great lengths to twist the facts and
wi t hhol d evi dence, instead of searching for the truth. It cannot
be said that the inpeachnment of Ms. Ward’s pivotal testinony that
the victimdid not carry | oose stones would not have underm ned
confidence in the outcome of the trial. The State used the force
of Ms. Ward's story-telling to make its case cone alive. No
ot her testinmony cane close in force or prom nence as Ms. Ward’'s
enot i onal account of the suspect, his description, and the itens
possessed by Ms. Caruso. According to trial counsel’s testinony
at the evidentiary hearing, they could have weaked havoc with
cross-examnation if they had the excul patory information in the
possessi on of the State.

In Strickler, the U S. Suprenme Court nade a factual
distinction in denying relief when it was clear fromthe facts
that forensic evidence and Strickler’s own confession were
sufficient to sustain a conviction despite the significant and

mat eri al Brady violations that occurred. Her e, we have



significant and material Brady violations, but no forensic
evi dence or confessions linking M. Vining to the crime. Under

Strickler, Kyles and Brady, M. Vining would be entitled to a new

trial.?*

The State contends that its m sdeeds do not rise to the
| evel of a material Brady violation because there was sufficient
evi dence outside the dianond evidence and the fact that no
evidence linked the car with the victimto sustain a conviction.
If this were true, then there would have been no reason for the
State to withhold the evidence, despite counsel’s specific
request for the notes Detective Nazarchuk’s deposition. (PCR
172-73).

The State wi thheld evidence that the victimcarried no | oose
stones. None of the itens exam ned by Kevin Donner were | oose
stones. None of the dianonds wei ghed the sane as the all eged
notive dianond. The descriptions of the suspect seen with
CGeorgi a Caruso changed several times depending on whether the
statenments were taken before or after the “relax and recall”
sessions by the Sheriff’s Department hypnotist. M. Ward saw
detectives eight tines before making an identification and then

only after a “relax and recall” session.

‘M. Vining need not prove that the outcone would have been
different, he need only prove that there is a “reasonable
probability” exists that but for the State’ s w thhol di ng of
evi dence, confidence in the outcome of the trial is underm ned.
See, Kyles v. Wiitley, 514 U. S. 419, 434 (1995).
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The State argued in closing that defendant’s car was burned
to hide evidence. But, the State withheld the report that proved
that no hair or fiber fromthe victimexisted in the car. The
State withheld the excul patory FBI report that showed the fibers
did not match the car. The State knew this evidence was
significant and in the hands of an infornmed defense attorney
would ruin its case.

Judge Bronson conceded that the FBI report “tended to negate
a connection between the victimand the Defendant’s car” but
found the Defendant would have been convicted even if the FB
report had been disclosed to the defense.” (PC-R 2490). Once
again, the hearing court ignored the dictates of Young and Kyl es.
The only evidence in front of Judge Bronson proved the inportance
of having such an excul patory piece of evidence (PC-R 54-55; 49-
52). Both defense attorneys testified it was valuable. The
testimony was unrebutted by the State.

Q And you said that’s sonmething you woul d have

li ked to have presented or thought about or used, is

that correct?

MS. CASHMVAN: Absol utely. Absolutely. That would

be evidence that would exonerate nmy client, that woul d

show t hat sonmeone el se had a connection to the

deceased. (PC-R 221-22).

Q (BY MR LERNER:) If one of the fibers - - from

CGeorgia Caruso’s bl ouse or wherever it cane from her

dress had mat ched sonething that could be |linked to M.

Vi ni ng, that would have been a significant fact. Wuld

it have not?

MR. SI MsS: Sur e.
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Q But the fact that a fiber, polyester fiber in and
around her body did not match the rug is of no
consequence at all. 1Is it?

MR. SI Ms: Well, | can tell you ve been a prosecutor
for a long tine.

If I have a firearmand there’'s a fingerprint on in but
it’s not by client’s, that’s inportant because there’'s
a fingerprint that’s not ny client’s.

And you say that - - that was the gun that was used in
t he robbery, if you have a fiber on the body of a
person and you’' re assunm ng that either cane froma
crime scene or was left by an assailant, every little
bit, especially in a circunstantial state, every little
bit of reasonabl e doubt counts.

So in a situation |like that, you say, well, sonebody
left that fiber and, of course, you can rebut it as the
prosecutor saying , well, you don’t even know t hat

fiber is a part of this case but we don’'t know that it
isn't.

Q From that report, you have no idea where the
fiber came from Do you?

MR. SIMS: No. That’s why you would have to have that

report to track it down and see if they - - when you
say fiber, | assune you are telling nme the fiber that
was on Ceorgia s person?

Q | believe that's what it says but | can go fetch
it.

MR. SI MS: That’s all right. | don’t think that that

matters where it canme fromas |long as we can show t hat
it didn't conme from M. Vining because then | don’t
have to pick out who commtted the crine. | just say
it wasn'"t him And so a fiber found on a body which,
you know, in nystery novels and in novies and in these
courts of law are always brought in to try to say this
links it up matters just as nuch when it doesn’t I|ink
it up and you have always the possibility as a
prosecutor to say that doesn’'t matter, she could have
picked it up sitting at the briar patch earlier that
nor ni ng.
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(PC-R. 91-92).

The report was inmportant to the defense. Despite Judge Bronson’s
order that said other people connected the defendant to the
crime, he failed to address that all of these w tnesses gave

i nconsi stent descriptions and could not positively identify the
def endant until two years later and after they had been
hypnoti zed/ rel axed and recall ed. Judge Bronson suggest that
Ward’'s description of the suspect vehicle was enough. But it
wasn't until after hypnosis that she gave details about the car.
Judge Bronson also said that the testinmony of Pianteri, Ryan and
Jones provided a “strong connection between the victimand the
Def endant.” (PC-R. 2490). However, none of these people ever saw
the suspect. All these people could testify to was a di anond

t hey consigned to Mark Ryan and Mark Ryan said he gave to Ms.
Caruso. Nothing in their testinony connects M. Vining to the
car, the victimor the greenish-tinged dianmnd. As a result, the
hearing court’s order is in error.

Wt hout the testinony about | oose di anobnds, the State had no
motive for the crime. The physical descriptions of the suspect
were tainted by hypnosis or “relax and recall.” The burning of
the car has no significance because it cannot be |linked to the
victim The withheld FBI report suggests that nothing |inked the
burning car with the crime. The phone nunmbers did not natch.

The chain of custody of the “nmotive dianond” is tenuous at best,
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particul arly when the “notive di anond” spent a good deal of tinme
being carried in Detective Nazarchuk’s pocket. The chain of
cust ody was suspicious. The weight of the dianond differs from
t he di anonds shown to Kevin Donner and others. All of the

evi dence was either withheld or tainted by the State’s conduct.

To further prove that the prosecution’s case was weak, the
trial judge, who was deeply disturbed by the | ack of evidence,
conducted an i ndependent investigation w thout notice to defense
counsel. The judge requested the Sem nol e County probate
inventory of Ms. Caruso’s property. Judge Baker testified that
he did this “to make the evidence nore clear.” (R 2622; PC-R. 141)

Judge Baker also nmade a trip to the “alleged” crine scene
presumably to make the witness’s testinony nore “clear.” The
j udge was obviously troubled by Ms. Ward’s testinony regarding
t he suspect’s description. She was the only w tness who
testified about the nail salon, its location, and the tines that
t he suspect allegedly cane to the sal on. She was the only
wi tness who coul d have caused the Judge Baker to investigate (PC-
R 147).

The jury viewed Ms. Ward as the only witness to put the
suspect, the location of the nail salon and the dianonds with Ms.
Caruso. She was the only witness who could testify about the
contents of Ms. Caruso’s purse. The State enphasi zed her

testinmony in closing argunent. |f defense counsel could have
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i npeached Ms. Ward’s testinony regarding the | oose stones, the
arrival and departure tines, her description of the suspect, and
the fact that the FBI found no connection between the car and the
victim it is a “significant possibility” that the jury would
have had a reasonabl e doubt about M. Vining' s guilt and
recommended either an acquittal or a | esser included offense.

The Brady violations in this instance were materi al and
significantly underm ned confidence in the outconme of the trial.
So nmuch so, that the judge was conpelled to make the evi dence
“more clear” by conducting his own investigation.

The Court of Appeals’ negative answer to that question
rested on its conclusion that, w thout considering
Stoltzfus' testinony, the record contained anpl e,

i ndependent evi dence of guilt, as well as evidence
sufficient to support the findings of vileness and
future dangerousness that warranted the inposition of

t he death penalty. The standard used by that court was
incorrect. As we nmade clear in Kyles, the materiality
inquiry is not just a matter of determ ni ng whet her,
after discounting the incul patory evidence in |light of
t he undi scl osed evidence, the remaining evidence is
sufficient to support the jury's conclusions. |Id., at
434-435. Rather, the question is whether ‘the
favorabl e evidence could reasonably be taken to put the
whol e case in such a different [ight as to underm ne
confidence in the verdict.’” 1d., at 435.

Strickler v. Greene, 119 S. Ct. at 1952, (citing Kyles v.

Whitley, 514 U.S. 419 (1995); Cf (PC-R  2487-92).
M. Vining is entitled to a newtrial.
ARGUMENT |
MR. VI NI NG WAS DENI ED HI' S RI GHT TO THE EFFECTI VE

ASSI STANCE OF COUNSEL AND TO A FAI R AND | MPARTI AL
TRI BUNAL DURI NG HI S CAPI TAL TRI AL BECAUSE HE WAS
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SENTENCED TO DEATH BASED ON EXTRA- RECORD | NFORMATI ON,

I N VI OLATI ON OF GARDNER V. FLORI DA AND THE FI FTH,

SI XTH, EI GHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNI TED
STATES CONSTI TUTI ON. DEFENSE COUNSEL’' S FAI LURE TO
OBJECT DEPRI VED MR. VI NING OF THE EFFECTI VE ASSI STANCE
OF COUNSEL I N VI OLATI ON OF THE FI FTH, SI XTH, EI GHTH,
AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS, AND GARDNER V. FLORI DA.

I nt roducti on

In his rule 3.850 nmotion, M. Vining clainmed that he was
denied his right to a fair and inpartial tribunal during his
capital guilt and penalty phases. M. Vining argued that defense
counsel s unreasonable failure to object to the trial judge's
consi deration of extra-record information and seek recusal was

i neffective assi stance of counsel under Gardner v. Florida, 430

U S 349 (1977), and Porter v. State, 400 So.2d 5 (Fla. 1987).
This Court failed to consider this claimon direct appeal
because:

We find that this issue is waived for purposes of

appel l ate review as defense counsel never objected to
the court’s consideration of this material.

Vining v. State, 637 So. 2d 921, 927 (Fla. 1994).

In its brief on direct appeal, the State conceded that defense
counsel failed to object to the judge' s actions. See, Appellee’s
Brief at page 14 (“No objection to the view ng of such materials
was ever raised below by defense counsel at the penalty phase,
sentencing, or any tinme prior thereto”); Id at 15 (“The letters
of the trial judge and the record denonstrate clear know edge on

the part of defense counsel of the judge’s undertaking”).
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M. Vining’s case was Judge Baker’s first and only death
penalty case that had proceeded conpletely through sentencing
phase (PC-R 123). Judge Baker’s unorthodox nethods of trying
cases has been the subject of contentious recusal notions since

M. Vining’s capital trial. See, Rollins v. Baker, 683 So. 2d

1138 (5" DCA 1996) (on writ of prohibition ex parte
comruni cati ons between judge and wife’'s counsel, together with
judge’s comments at notion to conpel hearing were sufficient to

create a well-grounded fear of |ack of inpartiality); Tinme-Wrner

Entertai nnent Conpany v. Baker, 647 So. 2d 1070 (5'" DCA

1994) (judge had conplied with requirenents for discussing case
with expert when he gave notice to the parties and afforded a
reasonabl e opportunity to respond. See also, dissent by Judge

Dauksch with opinion); Lowran v. Baker, 595 So. 2d 1121 (5" DCA

1992) (on a petition for wit of prohibition while denied on
appeal dissenting opinion by Judge Dauksch “It is obvious to ne
that the circuit judge who is requested to recuse hinmself is
personal ly affronted by the actions of the |awer for the
petitioners. That circunstance gives an appearance of |ess-than-
objective attitude by the judge toward the | awer which may
affect the petitioners and their perception of the judge’'s
fairness.”).

Even though these are civil cases, the same conduct occurred

here except Judge Baker did not notify defense counsel of his
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activities until after the sentencing phase of trial. Trial
counsel did not object, nove for mstrial or nove to recuse the
judge as the civil attorneys did in the above cases.

The Judge’s investigation

...As the judge presiding at guilt phase and the

advi sory sentence phase of the jury trial, | was

present for all of the testinmony and evidence

i ntroduced during both phases of the trial. Also, |

have read all of the depositions transcribed and fil ed

with the clerk of the court. | read a copy of the

medi cal examiner’s report and discussed it with him |

obt ai ned copies of the Sem nole County estate file on

Ceorgi a Dianne Caruso, deceased, and checked the cl ains

filed in the estate which described jewelry consigned

to the deceased at the tine of her death, as

corresponding to sonme of the jewelry appraised for her

shortly before her disappearance...
(R. 2630) (sentencing order).

None of the evidence described in the judge's sentencing
order was admtted or presented at trial. The revelations in the
judge’s sentencing order were the tip of the iceberg as to his
consi deration of extra-record information that was not presented
to the jury or noticed to defense counsel. Counsel only |earned
of this after the trial was conpleted.

In his rule 3.850 notion, M. Vining argued that the judge
failed to disclose his personal experience with hypnosis and the
fact that he had, in the past, engaged in self hypnosis. He did
not reveal these experiences until Kevin Donner’s testinony was
proffered at trial (R 1135-40). Trial counsel did not object.
By this tinme, M. Vining’s Mdition to Exclude Hypnotically-Tainted

Evi dence had been denied by the court (R 1780-83). The State’s
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wi tnesses had already identified M. Vining in court w thout

bei ng cross-exam ned on their journey into “relax and recall.”
During the evidentiary hearing, Judge Baker testified that

before ruling on M. Vining’ s notion to suppress hypnotically-

refreshed testinony, he nmentioned to his friend, psychol ogi st,

St eve Jordan, that the issue of hypnosis had come up in the case.

M. Jordan had given the judge a copy of a book, Trance on Trial,

by Alan Scheflin and Jerold Shapiro (PC-R 128-29). The judge
adm tted reading the book in connection with the hypnosis issue
in the case and said the book was not an “outside source” but was
a |l aw book on the adm ssibility of evidence in courtroom
proceedi ngs (PC-R 129, 135). He admtted reading “sections of
t he book” prior to ruling on the notion to suppress in M.
Vining's case and took it “as a guide for what a judge shoul d
do.” (PC-R. 130). However, the judge could not recall whether
during trial he notified counsel that he had read the book or
consul ted any other sources on the topic (PC-R 130). He did
not know if the book had been discredited or whether he had read
Chapter Six, the definitions section, that specifically states

t hat the purpose of this book is not to discuss the admssibility
of hypnosis as it relates to eyewitness testinony. See, Trance

on Trial, supra at Chapter Six. The judge did not know if

def ense counsel asked to | ook at the book but he had it in his

office (PC-R 135). Had counsel known of the judge’'s



conversation with Dr. Jordan or his use of Trance on Trial, they

coul d have refuted sonme of the legal principles the court relied
on and di scovered that the principles espoused in the book have
been seriously discredited. Instead, counsel was denied that
opportunity and M. Vining was denied his due process right.

Judge Baker based his decision on whether the State’s
w t nesses had been hypnotized not on the evidence presented at
t he suppression hearing or at trial but on his own experiences
with hypnosis. The judge had personal know edge of disputed
evidentiary facts concerning the proceeding. Cf. Canon 3
(BE)(1)(a), Code of Judicial Conduct.

In addition, the judge repeatedly conducted extra-record
investigation into M. Vining’ s case, such as contacting
W tnesses and visiting the crinme scene. Because the judge
engaged in these activities outside the presence of counsel and
wi t hout inform ng counsel of the information he was receiving,
t he evidence was unrebutted. The evidence was unrebuttable
because the judge never disclosed what he had | earned. W thout
tactic or strategy, counsel did not object to the judge's
activities even after it was discl osed.

At the evidentiary hearing, the judge admtted to having a
conversation with the medi cal exam ner, Dr. Thomas Hegert, during
M. Vining’s case. The subject of the conversation was never

reveal ed to defense counsel
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Q |Is that your sentencing order?

A. It reads like it. It has ny signature on the
bottomof it. ...l assune it is without verifying it
myself. | can’'t tell you except to say that
conversations with the nedical exam ner are not
unusual .

In fact, | had-nowadays, we have | nternet

el ectronic mail comrunication, and | don’t have to cal
peopl e anynore, so | have correspondence with the

medi cal exam ner now. | had correspondence with the
medi cal exam ner | ast week and have had correspondence
with the nedical exam ner, that’'s Doctor Gore on
various subjects, and just— 1 was asking himlast week
for copies of his records related to — nothing to do
with this case, but | was asking himfor records
related to the nunber of deaths in Orange County from
heroi n overdose and how they arrived at this figure and
| asked himto send ne the records, and he did. L
woul d assune that’s the sane conversation with the
nedi cal exam ner, would be is this your report and is

t here anythi ng notable about it, and — it’'s like the
other records that are public records, records of
public officials, accessed by the public, | felt [an]

obligation to tell the people | had these records and |
| ooked at them and if they were anything | discovered
in themthat swayed ny decision that I would have said
so. (PC-R 139-140) (enphasi s added).

The judge’'s extra-record consultation with Dr. Hegert was
consi dered routine except that defense counsel was not notified
until after the trial was over. The judge received the only
written autopsy report of the victim He could not recal
whet her the report was admtted into evidence at trial. (PCR
137-39). The record on appeal reflects that is was not admtted
at trial. Despite the State’s attenpt to rehabilitate the judge
on whet her he had considered the autopsy report in his sentencing

order, the fact remains that gathering the evidence and having an
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ex parte conversation with a witness at trial is inproper (PC-R
155).

Fol | owi ng penalty phase but before sentencing, Judge Baker
foll owed the sanme procedure in procuring the victim s probate
records through ex parte contact with the clerk of probate court:

A. The clerk of the probate court was Bob

Her ndon...who was a classmate of mine in high school,
and 1’ve known him--1 grew up with himhere in town,
and | either called himor saw himor went to his

of fice and asked if there were a probate file on
Georgi a Caruso, and he said, no. But he said naybe she
didn't live in Orange County, m ght be an estate filed
sonepl ace el se and | said, would you find out

... Then about, | don’t know, five, six, seven days later |
got an envel ope that had this estate file of Georgia Caruso
from Sem nole County. | didn't ask for it, | really just
asked if there were such a file, and | wanted to | ook at the
inventory to — again, we' re talking about a record of a

circuit court in Sem nole County which of course as |I’m sure

you know, we're entitled to | ook at under the —take

judicial notice of, or take notice of, and | take that as a

guide, if you' re going to |look at any of these things you

ought to tell people. So when | received it | told himthis
is what | have and filed it in the court file.
(PC-R. 141) (enphasi s added).

Judge Baker “checked the clains filed in the estate which
described jewelry consigned to the deceased at the time of her
deat h, as corresponding to sone of the jewelry appraised for her
shortly before her disappearance.” (R 2630). It is obvious from
the judge's testinony and the sentencing order that the judge was
troubled by the lack of direct evidence regarding the notive

di anond.

I nstead of finding that the State had not proved its case,
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the court went out to prove it for them This was evidence that
t he defense could not rebut because it did not know of its

exi stence. It is obvious that the judge considered this evidence
in making his decision on M. Vining' s guilt and whether to
sentence himto death. (R 2630-2637). O herw se, the judge
woul d not have | ooked for it. The jury was never shown nor told
about these probate records (PC-R 142). Defense counsel was not
i nfornmed about the judge’s inquiry and exam nation of these files
until the trial was over. Even then, defense counsel did not

obj ect or nove for mstrial or recusal. The information obtained
by the judge was inproperly used against M. Vining.

Judge Baker al so obtained information about M. Vining s
prior conviction in Georgia and used that information against him
at sentencing (R 2634). The judge said he read and consi dered
depositions that were contained in the court file but not
admtted into evidence. He did not recall disclosing to defense
counsel that he had read the depositions, with the exception of
t he Ferguson deposition (PC-R 143). The jury did not know of or
consi der any of the depositions (PC-R 143).

Q | was thinking specifically of the

depositions in the Georgia case that was used as an

aggravator. [Do] [sic] You know if any of these

depositions were ever disclosed to the jury?

A | doubt it. | don’t recall...|l renmenber
there were sone witnesses about the Georgia case. |
can’t imagi ne how you woul d publish a deposition from

the Georgia case to a jury, in the citizen
[sic][sentencing] phase.
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(PC-R. 144-45) .

Judge Baker used this extra-record information as non-
statutory aggravation against M. Vining even though the State
had not introduced it at trial. Despite the inability of the
judge to recall whether he relied on any of the information in
t he depositions, it is apparent in the sentencing order that the
judge was greatly affected by the informati on he conpil ed about
the Georgia case and by probate records of the victim Mich of
the information he relied on at sentencing was not presented in
open court. For exanple, the judge found in his sentencing
order that the Georgia victimwas “taken to a wooded area where
she was rescued as she lay hel pless, with a gun pointed at her
head, beside a vertical grave that had been dug for her in her
presence.” (R 2634). There is no nention of any rescue in the
trial testinony at trial.

Judge Baker also made efforts to |locate the crinme scene in
Orange County. He said that he was confused about the | ocation
and had called the library asking if they had a “Nai
Expressions” listed in the tel ephone book (R 1913). After
penal ty phase but before sentencing, the judge conducted his own
view of the crine scene, even though no jury view had been
requested or conducted (PC-R 146).

Judge Baker never disclosed the results of his personal

i nvestigation and never indicated what information he found. The
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information he | earned nade the case “nore clear” yet he never
expl ai ned what facts he found that nade his decision to inpose a
death sentence “nore appropriate.” (R 2622).

At the evidentiary hearing, the judge testified that:

...l personally drove out on, I’'mgoing to say
436, but maybe it was 434, | don’t remenber where it
was, but | drove out in the vicinity of — drove out to

the vicinity of sonme building out there that had
sonmething to do with the case. Because | wanted to get
the kind of general of what the wi tnesses had been

tal king about. | can remenber driving out there and I
can renenber | ooking at the building, and | think I
st opped. And | think I — | noticed in one of the

papers you just handed ne it’s the Janest own Shoppi ng
Center, and | couldn’'t tell you right now where the
Jamest own Shopping Center is, but if that's the place
went there and — | _renmenber there was testinmony about
an upstairs and a downstairs, and stairway and | ooking
out the window, and | sinply wanted to get an idea of
what the wi tnesses were talking about. And I
understand that to be a view as a jury would take a
view. And | have never renenbered that a judge was
prohibited fromtaking a view fromthe prem ses that

are involved, in fact, 1’"’mgoing to take a vi ew of
prem ses in another |awsuit next week, and had done so
of t en.

(PC-R. 147) (enphasi s added).

Def ense counsel was not noticed that the judge was going to
view the crinme scene.

| nstead of relying on the evidence presented by counsel,
Judge Baker becane a second prosecutor and took it upon itself to
investigate the facts. “It sinply made the testinony nore
under st andabl e to ne regarding these places to have | ooked at
them” (PC-R 158). The judge m sunderstood his role in deciding

the case. “The only person who can collect evidence and include
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it in the record of the case is the trial judge.” (PC-R 158).
The judge is to collect evidence presented before himat trial,
not to act as a second prosecutor in gathering evidence that the

def ense has no opportunity to rebut. See, Porter v. State, infra.

To the extent that defense counsel was aware that Judge
Baker was privy to information that had not w thstood
adversarial testing, counsel’s failure to request access to that
information constitutes ineffective assistance of counsel.

Gardner v. Florida, supra at 361.

In Gardner v. Florida, [citation omtted], the
United States Supreme Court rem nded us that the
sentenci ng process, as well as the trial itself, nust
satisfy the requirenents of the due process cl ause.
Gardner held that using portions of a presentence
i nvestigation report without notice to the defendant to
rebut or challenge the report denied due process.

That ruling should extend to a deposition or any
ot her information considered by the court in the
sentenci ng process which is not presented in open
court. Should sentencing judge intend to use any
i nformation not presented in open court as a factual
basis for a sentence, he nust advise the defendant of
what it is and afford the defendant an opportunity to
rebut it.

Porter v. State, 400 So. 2d 5, 7 (Fla. 1987).

The Florida Suprene Court in Porter vacated the death sentence
and remanded for a resentencing when the trial judge relied on
information contained in a deposition that was not in evidence.
Here, the due process violations are nore egregious and go to

bot h phases of trial. The judge has admtted these violations

and obviously relied on themin his sentencing order. M. Vining
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is entitled to a new tri al
Trial counsel’s Deficient Performance and Prejudice

Trial counsel’s ability to effectively represent M. Vining
was thwarted by the trial court’s inproper actions. Trial
counsel was rendered ineffective by the trial court’s independent
i nvestigation, ex parte communicati ons and consi deration of
i nformation not presented in open court. M. Vining had no
opportunity to respond or confront the information.

To the extent that trial counsel was aware of the judge’'s
actions, counsel should have investigated the nature of the
trial court’s extra-judicial investigation. Trial counsel’s
failure to investigate the judge s conduct and nove for his
recusal resulted in unfair and biased consi deration of extra-
judicial material. M. Vining still does not know the substance
of the conversations the trial court had with outside experts,
clerks and the nmedical examner. The failure to object to the
judge’s conduct in conjunction with the state’ s i nproper conduct
in wthholding material Brady evidence prevented an adversari al
testing of the evidence. Judge Baker’s investigation went to
bot h phases of trial (PC-R 187).

M. Vining was prejudiced by counsel’s om ssions and the
trial court’s interference. For exanmple, the trial court
expressly rejected uncontradicted testinmony in mtigation that

M. Vining was a good father and a famly person. 1In its
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sentenci ng order the judge wote:
There is conflicting evidence on how good a father John
Bruce Vining was. That two of his children testified
to his parental responsibility to them should be
considered, but it is not a reasonable conclusion from
t he evidence that defendant was a “good father.”
(R 2633).
No conflicting evidence was presented at the penalty phase about
M. Vining being a good father. The only information suggesting
that M. Vining may not have been a good father was contained in
depositions that were not admtted at trial. Neither the State
nor defense presented or elicited any statenents or evidence

contradi cting defense witness testinony offered in mtigation.

See, Spenser v. State, 645 So. 2d 377, 385 (Fla. 1994).

The trial court also aggravated M. Vining' s sentence with
t he probate records and his prior conviction in Georgia with
deposition information that was not introduced at trial.

Q To your know edge was any of the probate

records or depositions the judge | ooked at ever

presented to the jury?

MS. CASHMVAN: No. No depositions were presented to
the jury and nothing about Ms. Caruso’s probate file.

(PC-R. 187).

At the evidentiary hearing, Ms. Cashman, |ead attorney on
the case, testified that she first realized the judge had
conducted extra-record investigation when she received letters
fromthe court on March 1, 1990 and March 14, 1990 detailing the

court’s investigation and search for information outside the
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trial

record.

MS. CASHMVAN: It’s nmy understanding fromreading the
letter the Judge used the phrase during the trial in

t he opening sentence in the letter, he did not
specifically clarify what things he did during the
trial and what things he did after the trial, but the
March 14t" |etter, | believe is the correct date,
clearly states he did sone things during trial, which I
was totally unaware of, as was M. Hebert.

(PC-R. 188).

Had trial counsel known about the independent fact investigation

of Judge Baker, she would have objected to preserve the issue for

appel

di dn’

| ate revi ew.

Q Woul d you have taken some kind of further
action?

MS. CASHVAN: Yes. | would have objected to the
Judge going outside the record. |It’'s a Grdner
violation under the law. | would have needed to know
what exactly he had read and vi ewed and done. | would

have done additional research on it during the trial

| woul d have spoken with Kelly, probably gone back and
talked to M. Durocher, nmy boss or our chief assistant,
M. Lorincz, on a nunber of issues in the case. Wuld
go back to the office and bounce it off other senior
attorneys and get ideas and tal k about what’'s the best
way to handle the issue, what’'s the best way to
preserve the issue, you know, what needs to be done,
what sort of record needs to be nade and then made a
deci si on based on what information | had, what was best
for ny client and best for the case.

Q But because of the Judge' s late discloser [sic], you
t have that opportunity?

MS. CASHMAN: You can’t object to something that’s

al ready happened. As | stated previously, you know, we
have a contenporaneous objection, we’'re all in - -

because | wasn’t given notice and the opportunity to be
heard before it happened, all | could do was nake sure

that the letter was nade part of the file, and it could
be addressed on appeal .



(PC-R. 189-190) (enphasi s added).

Trial counsel also testified that she was unaware that Judge
Baker had done independent research into hypnosis. Trial court’s
ruling that the wi tnesses had not been hypnotized prevented tri al
counsel from cross-exam ning the state’ s all eged eyew t nesses.

Q \Were you aware at that tine that he [the trial

judge] had done his own independent research into the

hypnosi s issue?

MS. CASHVAN: | don’t believe so. There was

sonet hing that came up about the fact M. Sinms and |
weren’t allowed to use the word hypnosis or refer to it

in that manner. | have a really vague recollection.
But | renmenber that issue being discussed.
Q Did you feel constrained by the court’s order as

far as what you could get into on cross exam nati on of
the state’s witnesses after his ruling?

MS. CASHMVAN: Absol utely. The court ruled that it
wasn’'t hypnosis. | wasn't allowed to say it was
hypnosis, that it was relax and recall. That the
testimony was comng in, that the state was going to be
allowed to put all that on. | had been told these were
areas of cross exam nation that | was very clearly not
to go into.
(PC-R 180).
The record does not reflect any court order that counsel could
not cross exam ne the wtnesses on their “relax and recall”
sessions. The prejudice to M. Vining was that the eyew tness
recol | ecti ons and descriptions of the suspect were never
adversarially tested through cross exam nation before the jury.
The jury did not know that the state’s key wi tnesses had been

subjected to a “relax and recall” session because the w tnesses
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were not cross exam ned on this significant issue.
Trial counsel did not know until the proffer of Kevin

Donner’s testinony during trial that the court was involved in

sel f-hypnosi s and had never been able to hypnotize hinself.

Trial counsel also did not know that the court had spoken about
the case with Dr. Steven Jordan, a psychol ogi st who regularly
testifies for the state. Had counsel known, she woul d have

obj ected and filed the notions to suppress to preserve the issues
properly for appellate review (PC-R 188).

M. Vining also was prejudiced by the judge’s consideration
of an autopsy report that was not admtted at trial and the ex
parte comuni cations he had with Dr. Thomas Hegert. Tria
counsel was unaware that Judge Baker had contacted the medical
exam ner, who was a trial witness for the state.

MS. CASHMVAN: This is a letter dated March 1st of
1990 sent to Ken Hebert and | from Judge Baker..

... The substance of the letter is that the judge, after
the trial had been conpl eted, spoke to Doctor Thomas
Hegert who had been the medical exam ner called by the
state in this case, and he goes on to say what he
confirmed, and that informs me that M. Hebert had
given hima copy of the autopsy report.

Q Do you remenber whether or not that autopsy
report was admtted into evidence?

MS. CASHMVAN: There has never been an autopsy report
entered into in all the cases |’'ve done, so there
woul dn’t have been.

Q Woul d the autopsy report or information about

t he autopsy gone to guilt phase evidence or penalty
phase evi dence?
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MS. CASHMVAN: Both. The state is required to prove
i ssues on cause of death, tinme of death, those sorts of
t hi ngs for purposes of guilt phase, and it is usually
the first witness they call in penalty phase and they
reshow the slides and argue either heinous, atrocious
and cruel or cold, calculated , preneditated, but it
goes to both aggravation as well as having to prove the
el ement of the victimbeing dead. So - -

Q He refers in that letter to an item phone
conversation. Do you recall receiving a tel ephone cal
fromthe judge regarding his investigation into an

aut opsy report?

MS. CASHMAN: | don’'t. It doesn’t nean he didn't
call. | don’t know. | have no recoll ection of
speaking to the judge on the phone.

(PC-R. 181-82).

M. Vining did not know that Judge Baker had doubts about
the victims death. This is particularly inportant in this
hi ghly circunstantial case. M. Vining' s arrest was not made
until nearly two years after the discovery of the victins body.
Judge Baker admitted in his testinony that he conducted his extra
record fact investigation to nake the evidence “nore clear.”

MS. CASHVAN: This is a letter dated March 14th
Agai n, from Judge Baker, sent to Ken Hebert and nyself.
It informs M. Hebert and nyself that since the trial
the court read all the depositions and had attenpted to
obtain docunents that were referred to in trial and
depositions not in evidence. It goes on to say such as
Doctor Heggert’'s report, the probate records of the
deceased, indicates he's famliar with the downt own

W nter Park area, where inportant events occurred, and
t hat before sentencing he expects to drive out to the
Janmest own Shoppi ng Center, and the Judge ends the
letter by tal king about his preference being to go to
pl aces, tal ked about her testifying, that usually it’s
not possible but he doesn’'t want to overl ook anything
that m ght make the case nore clear or his decision
nore appropriate.
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Q Was that the first that you knew that the judge
had collected this extra record material ?

MS. CASHMAN: Yes.

Q By this time had the trial been conpl eted?

MS. CASHMAN: Yes.

Q Penalty Phase was conpl eted?

MS. CASHMAN: Yes.

Q The only thing that remai ned was sentencing?

MS. CASHMAN: Yes.

Q At the tinme you received that, did you have any
opportunity to view any of the materials or raise an
obj ection to the judge’s conduct?

MS. CASHVAN: No, Florida has a contenporaneous
objection rule. And I was given notice of things that
had al ready occurred that was one of those situations
where the bell had been running [sic] and you coul d not
unring it. It was too late for me to enter an

obj ection of any sort. | had no idea during the trial

that the judge had been reviewi ng things not in
evi dence and that he was attenpting to obtain anything

Q Well, certainly had you known about this

information during trial , would you have taken that

opportunity to | ook at what the judge had read?

MS. CASHMAN: Yes, Absol utely.
(PC-R. 183-84) (enphasi s added).

M. Vining was prejudiced and to the extent that counsel
knew after the fact of the judge’'s activities, counsel offered no
tactical or strategic reason why she did not object.

At the evidentiary hearing, the State argued that the

cont enpor aneous objection rule did not prevent counsel from
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obj ecting and making a motion for mstrial to preserve the

i ssues. For exanple, on cross-exam nation, M. Lerner questioned
Ms. Cashman about the objections she made to the testinony of

Det ective Ferguson from Georgia (PC-R 241-242). M . Lerner
suggests that defense counsel should have known that Judge Baker
was reading the depositions by statements he made in court:

Q And during that tine the judge reveal ed at

several points he had already prior to that read the

Ferguson deposition and he was recalling it at that

point. Isn't that true?

MS. CASHMVAN: Yes. And | was objecting based on

what was contained in the deposition, the he didn't

have personal know edge, the state shouldn’'t be all owed

to call him | noved for mstrial, other objections I

made that were appropriate based on what the state was

trying to get into evidence.
(PC-R 249).

Before his March 14, 1990 letter disclosing the full extent
of his investigation, it was apparent Judge Baker had actively
conducted his investigation wthout thought as to what was goi ng
to be entered into evidence or w thout giving notice to counsel
(PC-R 251). It also was evident fromthe sentencing order that
the court relied on nore than just Detective Ferguson’'s
deposition:

Q Was it your understanding fromreading the

sentencing order that he [the judge] relied on nore

t han one deposition than [sic] his sentencing order?

MS CASHMAN: Yes, Ma’ am

Q And was the deposition referred to as Detective

Ferguson’ s deposition, had that been used at trial and
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was it sonething that was di sputed?
MS. CASHMAN: Yes.

Q Did you feel your objections had put the judge on
notice that the deposition should not be considered?

MS. CASHMAN: Yes. | didn't think M. Ferguson
shoul d be called as a witness at all.

Q Did you feel your objections had sufficiently
preserved the issue for appellate review?

MS. CASHMAN: Yes, Ma’ am
(PC-R 258-59).
| f Judge Baker gave notice at the penalty phase, counsel should
have objected and noved for mistrial. Judge Baker’s conduct
interfered with counsel’s ability to try the case and present

information to the jury. See, Blanco v. Singletary, 943 F.2d

1477, 1499 (11" Cir. 1991).
Community Standards in 1990

Chandl er Muller, expert capital defense attorney, testified
at the evidentiary hearing as to the community standards in 1990
for attorneys faced with the knowl edge that the trial judge has
consi dered extra-record informati on or done i ndependent
i nvestigation.

THE COURT: ...Could I just find out fromyou

personally if you are aware of any situations like this

in which a judge in a case of this magnitude was

conpl ai ned about or accusations were made that he or

she was conducting i ndependent investigation which

woul d have underm ned the integrity of the trial?

MR. MULLER: Judge, |I'’mnot specifically aware of a

specific case, but |I'’m aware where a | awer was
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confronted with anything that would be an ex parte

i ntroduction of evidence that fundanmentally would be
sonmet hing | awyers shoul d have objected to and noved to
strikes [sic] and nove to recuse.

(PC-R. 303-304) (enphasi s added).
During cross-exanm nation, M. Miller testified to the
prejudicial effect of this inmperm ssible conduct on the jury.

MR. LERNER: Now, you’'re talking about you gave an
answer and | didn't wite it down verbatim |I’mnot a
fast writer, but you said sonething about unless there
was a crucible where the material testified to, cross
exam nation referring to outside information, the jury
verdict is unreliable?

MR. MULLER: Yes.

MR. LERNER: That would only be if that informtion
actually made it to the jury, is that correct?

MR. MJLLER: No, the information m ght not make it to
the jury. For exanple, you could have a case where a
court has proffer during trial of an alleged eye
witness to a crinme and the court rules that person
could testify because they have not been hypnotically
i nduced, and then the court could nake a comment, by
the way, | know about this, and proceed to tal k about
things that were the product of the court’s own

i nvestigation.

If the lawer at that point did not nove for mstrial

or nove to strike that, by om ssion the jury would get
unreliable information, because the |awer, for
exanple, if the judge let that witness testify, my not
have cross exam ned a wi tness about relax and recall as
opposed to hypnosis, and that type of thing, and the
jury may never have heard of it.

MR. LERNER: You know the comment on the record that
woul d be reviewed is part of the issue being
consi der ed?

MR. MULLER: | guess in your hypothetical, if the court

made that on the record and the | awer did not nove for
a mstrial at that point, training would have dictated
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any reasonably conpetent | awer woul d have done that,

and if a lawer didn’'t do that, that would be outside

t he training.

(PC-R 309-310).

The prejudice is obvious. All of the state’s key
eyew t nesses had been subjected to a “relax and recall”
techni que. The issue of whether or not the w tnesses had been
hypnoti zed was hotly contested issue. The trial judge, relying
on his own experience with hypnosis, denied the defense notion to
suppress the post-hypnotic identifications by the witnesses (R
1781). Trial counsel did not object to the judge’'s consideration
of extra-record information nor did they attenpt to inpeach the
wi tnesses on the fact that they had been “rel axed and recalled.”
Bot h om ssions were unreasonabl e under the circunstances of the
case.

M. Miller’s unrebutted testinmony proves the prejudice that
M. Vining suffered from defense counsel’s failure to object and
the trial court’s interference in considering information that
was not before the jury.

For example, the jury never knew the state w tnesses
identification of M. Vining was done after they had been
subjected to a |l evel of hypnosis or “relaxation.” The jury never
knew t hat Kevin Donner’s testinmony was different after hypnosis.
In fact, he was not shown any photographs until after he had been

“relaxed.” He had only | ooked at an ldenti-Kit. (PC-R State’'s
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Ex. 11). M. Donner nmagically recalled seeing the suspect weeks
before outside the jewelry store (PC-R State’'s Ex. 11). He
never identified M. Vining until after “relax and recall” (R
1156); and they jury never knew that by the tinme Donner testified
at trial he was able to see the suspect “during the whole tinme.”
“He was visible at all tinmes: both of themwere.” (R 1158-59).
This informati on never reached the jury, but the trial judge
based his opinion on this evidence. The jury did not know this
i nformati on because counsel did not object or cross-exan ne on

t he issue.

Judge Baker pre-determ ned the issue for the jury based on
hi s own experiences and his consultation with outside experts
that the wi tnesses had not been hypnotized. According to the
unrefuted testinony of Chandler Muller, the expert capital
educator and litigator, these om ssions fell below the conmunity
standards for reasonable attorney performance in 1990.

Judge Bronson’s Order Denyi ng Relief

The hearing court relied on erroneous statenents of fact and

ignored the applicable aw in denying relief to M. Vining.
Def endant avers that defense counsel was

ineffective in failing to object to or coment on the

trial judge s consideration of extra-judicial materials

i ncl udi ng depositions in the court file, the nedical

exam ner’s report, the probate record of the victims

estate and other extra-judicial materials. This issue

was al so addressed at the evidentiary hearing, at which

the trial judge testified. Assum ng arguendo that

trial counsel should have objected to the trial judge's
review of extra-record materials, this Court cannot
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concl ude that Defendant has proven that he suffered
prejudice therefrom First, at the evidentiary
hearing, trial counsel conceded that the penalty phase

testinmony of Gail Flemm ng was “devastating.” Second,
trial counsel also conceded that the jury recommended a
sentence of death by a vote of eleven to one. It has

not been alleged that the jury considered any extra-
record evidence.

Mor eover, on direct appeal, the Florida Suprenme
Court rejected the circunstance of cold, calcul ated,
and preneditated, and went on to exam ne the other
aggravating circunstances. The Suprenme Court concl uded
that the record supported “the trial court’s
conclusions that the nurder was commtted during a
robbery, was commtted by a person under sentence of
i nprisonment, and that the defendant was previously
convicted of a felony involving use of violence to a
person.” Vining v. State, (citation omtted). The
Supreme Court also found that the record supported “the
court’s conclusion that the other proposed factors
ei ther had not been established by the evidence
presented or could not be considered of a mtigating
nature.” 1d. It appears that the Supreme Court did not
consi der any extra-record evidence. Accordingly, the
Def endant has failed to prove prejudice and this claim
is denied as to this issue.

(PC-R 2496-97).
Nowhere in the court’s order does it apply the proper standards

to the claim either under Porter, Gardner or Strickl and. The

hearing court’s analysis was conpletely incorrect.

The hearing court suggests that this Court’s consideration
of this claimon direct appeal foreclosed Judge Bronson from
granting relief. This Court specifically held that the claimhad
not been properly preserved by trial counsel.

Therefore, the proper appellate avenue to chall enge the due
process claimis through a Fla. R Crim P. 3.850 post-conviction

nmoti on. This ineffective assi stance of counsel claimand the due
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process violation could only be raised in a Rule 3.850. The
i ssue had not been previously addressed. See, Fla. R Crim P.
3. 850.

Judge Bronson conpletely ignored the sem nal case on point,

Porter v. State, 400 So. 2d 5 (Fla. 1981).

Gardner held that using portions of a presentence

i nvestigation report wi thout notice to the defendant

and wi t hout an acconpanyi ng opportunity afforded to the

def endant to rebut or challenge the report denied due

process. That ruling should extend to a deposition or

any other information considered by the court in the

sentenci ng process which is not presented in open

court. Should a sentencing judge intend to use any

i nformation not presented in open court as a factual

basis for a sentence, he nust advise the defendant of

what it is and afford the defendant an opportunity to

rebut it.
Id., at page 6.

Just as in Porter, Judge Baker conducted an independent
i nvestigation in which he used extraneous factors agai nst M.
Vining in his rulings on the hypnosis issue and in determ ning
the sentencing issues. This “injuriously affected” M. Vining' s
trial because Judge Baker failed to be fair and inpartial and
trial counsel failed to object. The hearing court does not
mention the Porter case or howit affects the Strickland anal ysis
t hat nust be used in an ineffective assistance of counsel claim
This Court on direct appeal virtually mandated a findi ng of
i neffective assistance of counsel because it could not address
the merits of the claimbecause of counsel’s deficient

performance. See, Vining v. State, 637 So. 2d 921 (Fla. 1994).
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M. Vining was prevented from appellate review of the issue by
counsel s deficient performnce.

In addition, the only evidence before Judge Bronson was t hat
counsel’s conduct was deficient. M. Miller testified that it
was bel ow community standards in 1990 for counsel not to have
obj ected or noved for a mstrial and recusal (PC-R 309-310).

Judge Bronson fails to address counsel’s failure to object
to the trial court’s consideration of outside experts, retrieving
probate records, traveling to the crime scene, or his research
into whether or not the State’s witnesses could have been under
hypnosis. Defense counsel testified at the evidentiary hearing
that by the time she realized what the Court was doing, it was
too |late to object (PC-R Def. Ex. 7-8).

The hearing court also erroneously suggested that this
Court’s finding the evidence on appeal supported all of the
aggravating factors denonstrates that there was no prejudice to
M. Vining(PC-R 2497). Incredibly, the hearing court fails to
address that the trial court found the aggravators based on the
extra-record information. The hearing court ignored that Judge
Baker specifically relied on the informtion.

...As the judge presiding at guilt phase and the

advi sory sentence phase of the jury trial, | was

present for all of the testinony and evi dence

i ntroduced during both phases of the trial. Also,

have read all of the depositions transcribed and fil ed

with the clerk of the court. | read a copy of the

medi cal exam ner’s report and discussed it with him |
obt ai ned copies of the Sem nole County estate file on
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CGeorgi a Di anne Caruso, deceased, and checked the cl ains

filed in the estate which described jewelry consigned

to the deceased at the tine of her death, as

corresponding to sone of the jewelry appraised for her

shortly before her disappearance...

(R 2630) (sentencing order).

Judge Baker relied on these materials otherw se he woul d not have
included themin his sentencing order. Even then, defense
counsel did not object. The hearing court ignored this obvious
error.

Def ense counsel testified that Ms. Flemm ng’s testinmony (the
victimin the Georgia case) at penalty phase was devastati ng.
Judge Bronson relied on this statenment to support his position
that it would not have mattered if the judge did extra record
investigation (PC-R 2497). |If this were true, there was even
more reason for defense counsel to object to the consideration of
extraneous facts by the judge.

The judge was supposed to be the fair and inpartial arbiter
of the facts. He was not to be swayed by inflammtory or
excessively enotional issues. As a co-sentencer, the judge was
to consider only the evidence presented to him In reality, he
aggravated the case because of the information he investigated
t hrough the deposition of Detective Ferguson fromthe Georgia

crime.

The hearing court failed to address the Strickland® test for

°Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668 (1984).
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i neffective assistance of counsel. The hearing court failed to
nmention that regardless of the evidence presented in penalty

phase, a Gardner® violation is a constitutional due process

vi ol ati on of the nobst fundanmental ki nd. A Gardner violation
cannot be harmless. |If the hearing court’s position were
correct, M. Porter would never have been granted relief in

Porter v. State, supra, where, contrary to this case, there was a

confession and overwhel m ng evidence of guilt.

Neither Ms. Cashman nor M. Sins testified that they
di scussed recusing Judge Baker at any tine during trial. Neither
said that they woul d have kept Judge Baker had they known about
his extra-record investigation.

A decision not to recuse a judge who conducted an
i ndependent investigation of the facts would have been bel ow
community standards for reasonably conpetent counsel in 1990,
according to Chandler Muller. Neither defense counsel testified
to any strategy or tactic for not recusing Judge Baker.
Concl usi on

M. Vining was prejudiced by the trial court’s conduct and
counsel’s failure to object and nove for mstrial or recusal when
it was apparent the judge had consi dered extra-record
information. The jury never knew that it was not privy to all of

the informati on considered by the court. The facts in this case

®Gardner v. Florida, 430 U S. 349 (1977).
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are nore egregi ous than what occurred in Gardner and Porter. M.
Vi ni ng never had an opportunity to rebut the factual matters in

t he depositions, probate records, autopsy report, the judge’'s
research or his conversations with the nedi cal exam ner, probate
clerk or Dr. Jordan. Defense counsel offered no strategic

deci sion for not objecting to the unconstitutional Gardner
violations. Due process is denied when an adversarial testing of

the state’'s evidence does not occur. See, Strickland v.

Washi ngton, supra. M. Vining is entitled to a new trial before

a fair and inpartial judge.

ARGUMENT | |1

MR. VI NI NG WAS DENI ED A FULL AND FAI R HEARI NG I N

CIlRCU T COURT BY THE COURT' S FAI LURE TO ALLOW HI M TO

EXAM NE THE MOTI VE DI AMOND AND FAI LURE TO GRANT A

HEARI NG ON | NEFFECTI VE ASSI STANCE OF COUNSEL AT GUILT

PHASE AND NEW.Y- DI SCOVERED EVI DENCE

The trial court failed to conduct a full and fair hearing on
the clainms not supported by the record. The trial court granted
a hearing on a fraction of the claims in M. Vining' s Rule 3.850
notion for postconviction relief (PC-R 1970-71). Judge Bronson

only granted a hearing on three issues:

1. ClaimVl - Brady v. Maryland claim

2. ClaimIX - No Adversarial Testing at Penalty Phase
cl ai m--but only as to allegations of counsel’s

i neffectiveness in connection with the trial judge’'s
consi deration of extra-record nmaterial not presented in
open court;

3. Claim X - I neffective Assi stance of Counsel and

69



Failure to Ensure a Fair and Inpartial Tribunal — but

only as to the allegations of counsel’s ineffectiveness

in connection with the trial judge’ s independent

i nvestigation and consi deration of extra-record

mat erials not presented in open court (PC-R 1970-71).

M. Vining filed a notion for rehearing asking the court to
reconsi der such a severe limtation on the issues that were not
rebutted by the record, particularly the court’s failure to grant
an evidentiary hearing on ineffective assistance of counsel at
guilt/innocence phase and the new y-di scovered evidence cl ai ns
(PC-R 1977-80). This notion was denied (PC-R 1981).

Before the Huff hearing, counsel repeatedly requested access
to the notive di anond, which was held in the Orange County
Circuit Clerk’s office as a State's exhibit 18. The dianond is a
public record.

M. Vining argued that the characteristics of this dianond
are so unique that it cannot be the sanme dianond M. Vining
possessed at the time of the crime. To prove that the State’s
di anond is not the sanme, the dianond woul d have to be mapped to
document the inperfections and uni que features of the dianond.

M. Vining argued that had his trial counsel mapped the
moti ve di anond, they could have refuted the State’ s evidence that
t he di anond was the sanme di anond on consignnent to the victim
and elimnating the notive for the nurder as to M. Vining. It

was i neffective for counsel not to have requested or investigated

the possibility of expert testinony with regard to the di anond.
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In his postconviction notion, M. Vining alleged that expert
wi tnesses were now available to testify that a dianond coul d not
be identified two years after it had been exam ned unless a
| egitimate appraisal with a plotting of the dianond had been done
and used for conparison. This witness also could have proved
t hat when a | ower quality dianmobnd is cut, as was the dianond sold
by M. Vining, the appearance of the dianond is altered because
t he purpose of cutting the dianond is to enhance its brillance.
Anot her witness could confirmthat a dianmond of the size and
quality in the victim s possession could not be identified two
years later. This witness would have said that such an
identification could only be accurate if the dianond contained a
dramatic flaw that would classify the dianond as a | ower quality
than that involved in this case.

The di anbnd consigned to Georgia Caruso on the day before
her di sappearance had not been plotted by any of the w tnesses at
M. Vining’s trial. These witnesses testified fromnmenory that
t he di anond recovered from M chelle Merola in 1989 was the sane
di anond that had been consigned to Caruso in 1987.

M. Vining also could have presented an expert who would
have testified that the descriptions of the two di anonds as set
forth in the trial testinmony describes two different di anonds.
The expert woul d have pointed out the inconsistencies in the

descriptions of the dianmpbnds, and explain how in the science of
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genol ogy, these inconsistencies are significant. The expert
woul d al so have explained that, w thout exam ning the dianond in
evi dence, he could not give a definite opinion.

The hearing court denied postconviction counsel access to
pl ot the dianond, and said:

Furthernmore, even if Defendant had brought in an

i ndependent di anond expert to exam ne the dianond, he

has failed to show that there is a reasonable

probability that such expert testinony woul d have

changed the outcome of the verdict in this case.

Accordingly, this claimis summarily denied.

(PC-R 2486-87).

Once again the hearing court ignored the big picture. |If the

di anond, is the notive for the crime, then the elimnation of

t hat di anond al so erases the reason for the crime to occur in the
first place. To not allow counsel’s experts to the map the

di anond, then deny the claimas a failure to prove its
significance, is the ultimte Catch 22. The files and records do
not conclusively show that M. Vining was not entitled to a
hearing on this claim See, Fla. R Crim P. 3.850.

As a result of Judge Bronson’s ruling, M. Vining could not
prove that the notive dianond s greenish tinge excluded it from
being the common yell owi sh dianond M. Vining sold or that the
val ue of the dianond woul d have been markedly higher than the
anmount of nmoney M. Vining received.

This interference by the trial court prevented M. Vining

from proving his ineffective assistance of counsel claim See,
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Blanco v. Singletary, 943 F. 2d 1477, 1499 (11" Cir. 1991). The

di anond as State’s Exhibit 18 is a public record. M. Vining
shoul d be granted the sane access to the dianond that is
available to all citizens of Florida. He is sentenced to death
based on a fal se assunption that the dianond in evidence is the
sane di anond that M. Vining possessed. M. Vining is entitled
to relief.
| neffective Assistance of Counsel at Guilt Phase

The hearing court also summarily denied the ineffective
assi stance of counsel at guilt phase claimas procedurally barred
(PC-R 2483-84). It was summarily deni ed despite sharing sonme of
the sanme facts regardi ng Judge Baker’s consi deration of extra-
record information. It is difficult to understand how one cl aim
can be sufficient for an evidentiary hearing on second phase, but
the sanme facts in regard to first phase were not. The files and
records do not conclusively show that M. Vining was not entitled
to relief. The hearing court failed to attach any portions of
the records that show why M. Vining is not entitled to a
hearing. See, Fla. R Crim P. 3.850.

The evidence presented at the evidentiary hearing regarding
Judge Baker’s m sconduct al so applies to guilt phase. Each of
t hese acts and om ssions was prejudicial to M. Vining s defense.
“But for” any of these errors, there is a “reasonable

probability” the outconme of the trial would have been different.
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Strickland v. Washington, 466 U. S. 668, 694 (1984). A

“reasonabl e probability” is one sufficient to “underm ne
confidence in the outconme” of M. Vining’s trial. |d.

In his postconviction notion, M. Vining alleged that tri al
counsel failed to challenge the State’s case with di screpancies
in the witnesses testinony. These discrepancies were obvious
from depositions taken pre-trial. For exanple, the testinony of
Zaffis, Donner and Ward was critical to the case. Trial counsel
testified to their inportance at the evidentiary hearing. Each
witness testified he had seen photos of M. Vining before trial.
What the jury did not hear was that each w tness had been
“rel axed and recal |l ed/ hypnoti zed” by the Orange County Sheriff’'s
Office prior to identifying M. Vining. After the relax/recal
sessions, the witnesses worked with a sketch artist to construct
a conposite sketch of the man they saw with Georgia Caruso on the
day she di sappeared.

Detective Payne’s deposition showed many inconsistencies in
the identification of Joann Ward. It reflected that she was
uncertain and couldn’t nake an identification (See, Payne
Deposition at page 17). Detective Nazarchuk’s notes indicated
that Ward was “uncertain and unable to make a positive
identification.” Police Departnment notes dated June 5, 1989 al so

indicate that “Ward does not identify Vining.” However at trial,

Ward identified M. Vining and denied ever being uncertain (R
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1045- 46) .

The same type of information was avail able in depositions
from Detective England of the Wnter Park Police Departnment, who
conducted the initial investigation of the case. Detective
Engl and testified that Ward and Vietti were “85% sure” that a
driver’s license photo of a George S. WIllianms was the man they
saw with Caruso on Novenber 23, 1987. (England Deposition at page
8). Trial counsel questioned Ward about this, but when Ward
deni ed uncertainty, failed to i npeach her with the information.
The sane was true of Kevin Donner. See, State’'s Ex. 11, Donner
Deposition. None of counsel’s reasons for failing to i npeach on
this evidence is a matter of record. An evidentiary hearing
shoul d have been granted on this claim

At the suppression hearing on hypnosis, Ward testified that
she did not think she was hypnoti zed but that she does not know
what hypnotismis (R 1749-50, 1757-58). However, in deposition
Ward referred to being hypnotized and indicated particul ar
details she renenbered after the hypnosis (Ward Deposition at p.
35-6, 38-40).

Surprisingly, trial counsel never informed the jury that the
w t nesses had been rel axed/ hypnotized at all. After the Mtion
to Supress was denied, trial counsel never cross-exan ned or
argued to informthe jury that the witness’s nenories had been

“refreshed.” Also, trial counsel failed to object to Judge
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Baker’s use of extra-record material to rule on the suppression
noti on.

The trial judge based his ruling on the testinony of Lt.
Wat son, the man who had conducted the hypnosis sessions, and his
hypnosi s subjects, Ward, Zaffis and Donner. Watson testified
that he used the “relax and recall” procedure to “elim nate as
much as possible any barriers to recall and therefore enhance
recall.” (R 1733). After testifying that it is the intent of
the hypnoti st that determ nes whether the subject is hypnotized
or nerely “relaxed,” Watson admtted it was possible for the
subject to slip fromone |evel to another wi thout the hypnoti st
knowng it (R 1731). He also admtted that he did not know
whet her the subjects were under hypnosis and admtted it was
possi ble they were (R 1737). Defense counsel failed to bring
this to the jury's attention or object to the judge' s ex parte
reliance on outside sources to rule on the notion to suppress.

Def ense counsel also failed to present expert testinony on

the subject of “relax and recall” testinmony. This expertise was
readily available in 1990 and an expert would have been presented
to testify had an evidentiary hearing been granted on this claim

These omi ssions in conjunction with the Brady violations by
the State and the m sconduct of Judge Baker rendered trial

counsel ineffective under Strickland. M. Vining was prejudiced

by his jury never having known that the w tnesses that
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purportedly identified himin court were uncertain, relaxed and
recall ed and had been 85% sure it was soneone el se two years
earlier. M. Vining was entitled to a hearing on this claim
Sunmary deni al was not proper because the files and records did
not conclusively show that M. Vining is not entitled to relief.
An evidentiary hearing is needed.

ARGUMENT |V

MR. VI NI NG WAS DEPRI VED OF AN ADVERSARI AL TESTI NG AT
THE PENALTY PHASE OF HI S CAPI TAL TRI AL, I N VI OLATI ON OF
THE SI XTH, EI GHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS, AND THE
OUTCOMVE OF HI'S SENTENCI NG PROCEEDI NGS | S THEREFORE
UNRELI ABLE. TRI AL COUNSEL FAI LED TO ADEQUATELY

| NVESTI GATE AND PRESENT M TI GATI ON AND FAI LED TO
ADEQUATELY CHALLENGE THE STATE'S CASE. TRI AL COUNSEL
WAS RENDERED | NEFFECTI VE BY ACTI ONS OF THE PROSECUTI ON
AND THE TRI AL COURT, AND BY THE COURT' S REPEATED EXTRA-
RECORD | NVESTI GATI ON I NTO MR. VI NI NG S CASE.

M. Vining was deni ed an adversarial testing during the
penal ty phase of his capital trial. M. Vining is entitled to an
evidentiary hearing on this entire claimbecause the files and
records do not conclusively establish that M. Vining is entitled
to no relief.

Trial counsel’s ability to effectively represent M. Vining

was severely hanpered by the inproper actions of the trial court.

See, Blanco v. Singletary, supra. The trial court abandoned its

judicial responsibility to function as a detached and neutral
arbiter in this adversarial case. See, Argunent 11.

In addition to the all egations regardi ng Judge Baker’s
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reliance upon extra-record information, M. Vining alleged that
trial counsel failed to investigate and present statutory and
nonstatutory nental health mtigating evidence. A

neur opsychol ogi st who exam ned M. Vining was prepared to testify
to his mental deficits and brain damage, facts that should have
been presented to the sentencing judge and jury in mtigation.

M tigating evidence also was avail able that showed that M.

Vi ning had good noral character. The jury did not know that M.
Vining’ s nother was an al coholic or that he was a good student
and a good son. He stuttered as a child and volunteered for his
community. The jury never knew that M. Vining saved his wife's
life and was a fam ly person or that he succunbed to al coholism
hi msel f. None of M. Vining’s famly history was di scovered or
present ed by defense counsel.

Post convi ction counsel filed a Motion for Rehearing of Judge
Bronson’s order limting the evidentiary hearing, postconviction
counsel attached copies of the reports of the dianond and nent al
health experts (PC-R 1978-80). Judge Bronson denied the Mtion
for Rehearing (PC-R 1981).

Trial counsel failed to ensure the presence of M. Vining at
critical stages of his penalty phase proceedings. Trial counsel
failed to make a conplete record of these om ssions. M. Vining
was not present for off-the-record bench conferences (R 2045).

During many of these bench conferences, the trial court made
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rulings adverse to M. Vining based upon admi ssibility of
testinmony for the prior conviction in Georgia (R 1958-60, 1966-
68, 1970-74, 1985-88). Detective Ferguson testified over defense
obj ection to disputed facts derived from M. Vining' s purported
confession. M. Vining' s personal know edge of that incident
woul d have been relevant to trial counsel’s argunent and the
court’s rulings. Judge Bronson procedurally barred this claim
but failed to address trial counsel’s role in failing to ensure
M. Vining’ s presence at these conferences (PC-R 2498).

During penalty phase, the State presented two wi tnesses for
M. Vining’s involvenent in a prior felony in Georgia (R 1962-
92, 1993-2008). The jury was not presented with an accurate
pi cture of the Ceorgia incident, because trial counsel failed to
adequately investigate and prepare the case. Evidence that
rebuts the aggravators and establishes mtigation nust be
presented to the jury in order to ensure a reliable adversari al
testing.

Judge Bronson did not adequately address this claim Judge
Bronson found that the testinony fromM. Vining’s famly nmenbers
at penalty phase was sufficient (PC-R 2498). However, the court
does not address how these factors affected M. Vining s nental
health or address that nental health mtigation was avail abl e but
not used by defense counsel. The record does not refute this

claim It was error for the trial court to summarily deny this
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aspect of the claim M. Vining is entitled to a hearing on
t hese i ssues.

ARGUMENT V -- FAILURE TO OBJECT TO CONSTI TUTI ONAL ERROR
A. AUTOVATI C AGGRAVATOR.

M. Vining's jury was unconstitutionally instructed to
consi der an automati c aggravating factor: "commtted while he was
engaged in the conmm ssion of the crime of robbery” (R 2616). The
use of the underlying felony -- robbery -- as a basis for any
aggravating factor, rendered that aggravating circunstance

"illusory"” in violation of Stringer v. Black, 112 S. C. 1130

(1992). See also Blanco v. State, 706 So. 2d 7, 12 (Fla. 1998)

(Anstead, J., specially concurring). Due to the outcone of the

guilt phase, the jury's consideration of automatic aggravating

circunstances served as a basis for M. Vining' s death sentence.
Trial counsel's failure to object, which is cognizable in

Rul e 3.850, see, e.qg., Davis v. State, 648 So. 2d 1249 (Fla. 4th

DCA 1995), constituted ineffective assistance, and an evidentiary
hearing is warranted, as no tactical reason existed for failing
to object.
B. COLD, CALCULATED AND PREMEDI TATED | NSTRUCTI ON

The trial judge instructed M. Vining's sentencing jury that
when consi dering aggravating circunstances it could consider that
"the crime for which the defendant is to be sentenced was

conmmtted in a cold, calculated, and preneditated manner wi thout
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any pretense of noral or legal justification" (R 2616). This

jury instruction violated the Eighth Anendnent. Godfrey v.

Ceorgia, 446 U. S. 420 (1980); Jackson v. State, 648 So. 2d 85

(Fla. 1994). The only instruction the jury ever received
regarding the definition of "premeditated" was the instruction
given at the guilt phase regarding the preneditation necessary to
establish guilt of first-degree murder, which, as this Court has
hel d, does not establish the "cold, calculated and preneditated"

aggravating factor. Rogers v. State, 511 So. 2d 526, 533 (Fla.

1987). To the extent that M. Vinig s counsel failed to
adequately object, M. Vining did not receive effective

assi stance of counsel. Starr v. Lockhart, 23 F. 3d 1280 (8th

Cir. 1994); Strickland v. WAashington, 466 U. S. 668 (1984). At a

m ni mum an evidentiary hearing was required.
C. UNCONSTI TUTI ONALLY VAGUE STATUTORY LANGUAGE.
At the tinme of M. Vining's sentencing, the |anguage of 8§
921.141 (5), Fla. Stat. (1991), which defined the "cold,
cal cul ated and preneditated,” was facially vague and over broad.

Godfrey v. Georgia, 446 U.S. 420 (1980); Richnond v. Lew s, 113

S. C. 528, 534 (1992). To the extent that M. Vining' s counsel
failed to adequately object, M. Vining did not receive effective

assi stance of counsel. Starr v. Lockhart, 23 F. 3d 1280 (8th

Cir. 1994); Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668 (1984). At a

m ni mum an evidentiary hearing was required.
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D. EDDI NGS/ LOCKETT ERROR

The proceedings resulting in M. Vining s sentence of death

vi ol ated the constitutional mandate of Eddi ngs v. Okl ahomn, 455

U.S. 104 (1982), and Lockett v. Ohio, 438 U.S. 586 (1978).

Limted evidence was presented showing M. Vining' s history of
al coholism he was a fam|ly man and a good father. Judge Baker’s
sentencing order said there was “conflicting evidence” on how
good a father John Bruce Vining was. “That two of his children
testified to his parental responsibility to them should be
considered, but it is not a reasonable conclusion fromthe
evi dence that defendant was a ‘good father.’” (R 2633).
However, there was no conflicting evidence presented at trial.
The only information suggesting M. Vining may not have been a
good father was contained in depositions that were not admtted
or presented at penalty phase. The judge relied on extra-record
information in rejecting M. Vining’ s non-statutory mtigation.
Judge Bronson procedurally barred this claimand found that
any ineffective assistance of counsel with regard to this claim
was wi thout nmerit (PC-R 2508). As illustrated above, the issue
of M. Vining’'s mtigating evidence was not effectively argued.
Had it been, the trial court would have had to find this evidence
in mtigation. To the extent that counsel inadequately failed to
litigate this issue at trial, M. Vining was denied effective

assi stance of counsel.
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E. PRI OR VI OLENT FELONY AGGRAVATOR
The jury was instructed on and the judge relied upon M.
Vining s prior convictions to establish aggravating circunstances
under sentence of inprisonment and prior violent felony upon
whi ch his death sentence was based. The sentencing court found
t hat aggravating circunstance sufficient to outweigh mtigation.
The underlying Georgia and South Carolina convictions upon
which M. Vining’s sentence of death rests were obtained in
violation of M. Vining s rights under the Fifth Sixth, Eighth
and Fourteenth Amendnents. His death sentence, founded upon
t hese unconstitutionally obtained priors, violates his

constitutional rights. Johnson v. Mssissippi, 108 S. Ct. 1981

(1988); Duest v. Singletary, 967 F.2d 462 (11" Cir. 1992). The

failure to raise this claimat trial or on direct appeal
constitutes ineffective assistance of counsel.
F. UNDER SENTENCE OF | MPRI SONMENT AGGRAVATI NG FACTOR

M. Vining’s jury was instructed that “the crime for which
John Bruce Vining, Sr. is to be sentenced was comm tted while he
was under sentence of inprisonnment.” (R 2616). The jury was not
told that the weight of the aggravator was |less if the defendant
had not committed the hom cide after escaping from confinenment.

I n Songer v. State, 544 So. 2d 1010 (Fla. 1989), this Court

indicated that the gravity of the aggravator is dim nished since

t he defendant “did not break out of prison but nerely wal ked away
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froma work-rel ease job.” M. Vining was on parole at the tinme
of the offense.

The jury was not advised that the weight of the aggravator
was | essened because M. Vining obtained his release from prison
by |l egal and non-violent means. The jury nust be fully
instructed. Defense counsel argued in closing that this factor
shoul d not be given great weight because M. Vining was on parole
(R 2160). However, she failed to request constitutionally
adequate |limting instructions or object to the inadequate
instruction. As a result, the penalty phase instructions on
aggravating circunstances “failed adequately to inform|[M.
Vining’s] jury what [it] nust find to inpose the death penalty.”

Maynard v. Cartwight, 486 U.S. 356 (1988). Such instruction

viol ates Espinosa v. Florida, 112 S. Ct. 2926 (1992); Stringer V.

Black, 112 S. C. 1130 (1992); Sochor v. Florida, 112 S. C. 2114

(1992) and the Eighth and Fourteenth Amendnents to the United
States Constitution.
ARGUMENT VI -- RULE 3. 851

On January 1, 1994, Rule 3.851 of the Florida Rules of
Crimnal Procedure went into effect. Under this rule capital
def endants are all owed one year fromthe date their conviction
beconmes final to file a notion to vacate judgnent and sentence
under Rule 3.850 of the Florida Rules of Crimnal Procedure.

Rul e 3.851, which sets out this tinme requirenent, is



unconstitutional on its face and in its application since it
denied M. Vining due process and equal protection of the |aw as
guaranteed by the Fourteenth Amendnent to the United States
Constitution. Rule 3.851's tinme requirenent also violates
Article I, 88 2, 13 and 21 of the Florida Constitution. Relief
i's warranted.
ARGUMENT VI -- DEATH PENALTY UNCONSTI TUTI ONAL
Florida's death penalty schenme is unconstitutional on its
face and as applied to M. Vining. Execution by electrocution
and lethal injection is cruel and unusual punishnment under the
Florida and United States Constitutions. M. Vining hereby
preserves any argunents as to the constitutionality of the death
penalty, given this Court's precedent.
ARGUMENT VI I -- I NNOCENCE OF THE DEATH PENALTY.
Where a person is sentenced to death and can show i nnocence
of the death penalty, he is entitled to relief for constitutional

errors which resulted in a sentence of death. Sawer v. Wiitley,

112 S. Ct. 2514 (1992). This Court has recogni zed that innocence
is a claimthat can be presented in a notion pursuant to Rule

3.850, Johnson v. Singletary, 612 So. 2d 575 (Fla. 1993); Jones

v. State, 591 So. 2d 911 (Fla. 1991), and that innocence of the

death penalty constitutes a claim Scott (Abron) v. Dugger, 604

So. 2d 465 (Fla. 1992).

| nnocence of the death penalty is shown by denonstrating
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i nsufficient aggravating circunmstances so as to render the

i ndi vidual ineligible for death under Florida law. |In this case,
M. Vining's trial court relied upon four aggravating
circunstances to support his death sentence: (1) the crinme was
commtted during the course of a robbery; (2) cold, calculated,
and preneditated; (3) prior violent felony and (4) the crine was
commtted during while under sentence of inprisonment. As noted
in this brief, however, the jury was given an inapplicable
aggravator - - cold, calculated and preneditated. The rest of

t he aggravating circunstances relied upon by the judge to support
M. Vining' s death sentence: (1) cold, calcul ated, and

prenedi tated; and, the other two aggravators constituted
unconstitutional automatic aggravating factors, and are
insufficient standing alone to establish death eligibility.

Renbert v. State, 445 So. 2d 337 (Fla. 1984). Relief is

war r ant ed.
ARGUMENT | X -- JUROR | NTERVI EWs PROHI BI TED

Fl ori da Rul e of Professional Conduct 4-3.5(d)(4) provides
that a | awyer shall not initiate comunications or cause another
to initiate comunication with any juror regarding the trial in
whi ch that juror participated. This prohibition restricts M.
Vining’s ability to allege and litigate constitutional clains
that would show that his conviction and sentence of death violate

the United States Constitution. Mor eover, because of this
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prohibition, M. Vining is prevented from di scovering information
whi ch could warrant a new trial and which will be procedurally

barred if not investigated now. Buenoano v. State, 708 So. 2d

941 (Fla. 1998).

Florida's rule prohibiting M. Vining s counsel from
contacting his jurors violates M. Vining s rights under the
First, Fifth, Sixth, Eighth, and Fourteenth Amendnents to the
United States Constitution. It also denies himaccess to the
courts of this state in violation of Article I, 8 21 of the
Florida Constitution and the federal courts in violation of the
due process clause and the equal protection clause of the
Fourteenth Amendnent to the United States Constitution. This
Court nust grant relief or decide that the Rule is
unconsti tutional .

ARGUMENT X -- UNRELI ABLE APPELLATE TRANSCRI PT

The due process constitutional right to receive trial

transcripts for use at the appellate | evel was acknow edged by

the Suprenme Court in Giffin v. Illinois, 351 U S. 212 (1956).
See also Evitts v. Lucey, 105 S. Ct. 830 (1985).

At the time of direct appeal, appellate counsel was provided
with an i nadequate record where substantial proceedi ngs were made
off the record. Proceedings were conducted off the record during
voir dire (R 5, 32-33, 59), trial (R 1221, 1330), and penalty

phase(R. 2186). A review of the record on appeal reveal s that
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portions of the penalty phase proceedi ngs were either not
transcri bed or conducted off the record (R 2186-92). M.
Vining' s sentencing order was entered in open court on April 9,
1990. No transcript of the sentencing proceeding exists in M.
Vining’ s record on appeal.

Because the record in this case is inconplete, inaccurate,
and unreliable, confidence in the record is underm ned. As it
was trial counsel's duty to raise this issue on appeal, and trial
counsel was ineffective for failing to do so, this claimis
proper under rule 3.850. An evidentiary hearing is warranted.

ARGUMENT XI _-- ABSENCE DURI NG CRI Tl CAL STAGES

M. Vining was involuntarily absent fromcritical stages of
t he proceedi ngs which resulted in his conviction and sentence of
death. M. Vining never validly waived his right to be present.
During his absence, inportant matters were attended to, discussed
and resol ved. Defense counsel never objected to the proceedings
going forth without the presence of M. Vining.

M. Vining was absent during pre-trial proceedings, the
trial court heard testinony, evidence and argunent related to
critical defense nmotions including the notion to suppress
hypnotically-tainted evidence (R 2279-2291); notion in |imne
re: WIllianms Rule evidence(R 2292-2293); notion to discharge
based on Interstate Agreenent on Detainers (R 2328-2330); and

notion to prohibit in-court identification by w tnesses whose
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menory had been hypnotically refreshed (R 2294-2295). M.
Vining did not waive his presence at these proceedings. M.
Vining was al so absent when his guilt phase jury, during its
del i beration, submtted a jury question to the court (R 1652).

In Savino v. State, 555 So. 2d 1237 (Fla. 4t DCA 1989), the

def endant’ s absence fromthe courtroom when the court answered a
jury question on third-degree nurder constituted reversible
error, despite the State’s contention that the jury asked only a
| egal question and trial counsel waived the defendant’s presence.
Trial counsel also failed to ensure the presence of M.
Vining at critical stages of his penalty phase proceedings.
Trial counsel failed to make a conplete record of these
om ssions. M. Vining was not present for off-the-record bench
conferences (R 2045). During many of these bench conferences,
the trial court made rulings adverse to M. Vining based upon
adm ssibility of testinmony related his Georgia prior (R 1958-60,
1966- 68, 1970-74, 1985-88). For exanple, Detective Ferguson
testified over defense objection to disputed facts derived from
M. Vining s purported confession. M. Vining s personal
knowl edge of that incident would have been relevant to trial
counsel’s argunent and the court’s rulings. Judge Bronson
procedurally barred this claimbut failed to address tri al
counsel’s role in failing to ensure M. Vining’ s presence at

t hese conferences (PC-R 2498). The trial court conducted
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si xteen (16) bench conferences without M. Vining s presence
during the penalty phase alone (R 1939-1940, 1944-45, 1940-53,
1958- 60, 1970-74, 1985-88, 1988-1900, 1995-97, 2006-08, 2121-22,
2124-25, 2131-32, 32138-41, 2147-48, 2153-54, 2175-76). M.
Vining s absence fromthese bench conferences was error. See,

Cethers v. State, 620 So. 2d 201 (Fla. 4t DCA 1993).

The denial of M. Vining’s right to be present violates the
Si xth, Eighth and Fourteenth Amendnents to the United States
Constitution. Defense counsel’s failure to object to M.
Vining s absence constitutes prejudicially deficient perfornmance.

Atkins v. Attorney General, 932 F.2d 1430 (11*" Cir. 1991).

ARGUMENT Xl | —- PROSECUTORI AL M SCONDUCT COLLATERAL CRI MES
At M. Vining s penalty phase, the State presented evidence
that was irrelevant and inflanmatory. The evidence rendered M.
Vining' s trial fundanentally unfair and his resulting conviction

vi ol ates due process. See Rednman v. Dugger, 866 F.2d 387 (11"

Cir. 1989). M. Vining' s prior conviction in Georgia for

ki dnappi ng and aggravated assault dom nated the State’'s penalty
phase case. The State presented six w tnesses, four of whom were
brief and mnisterial in nature, anounting to | ess than ten (10)
pages of testinmony (R 1942-43, 1947-49, 1954-56, 1976-77). In
contrast, the testinony of the Georgia victimand the

i nvestigating detective on the crinme consunmed nore than forty-two

(42) pages of the record on appeal (R 1962-75, 1979-92, 1993-
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2009). The Georgia case was the highlight of the State’s case.
The testinony of these two witnesses was dramatic, inflammtory
and prejudicial. Trial counsel repeatedly objected to the
adm ssion of the testinony as non-statutory aggravati on,
i nflammatory, prejudicial and evidence of uncharged acts (R
1966-67, 1970-74, 1984, 1985-90). Judge Baker adnoni shed the
St ate:
One of the things that I want to be very careful

about here we’'re not really in a situation where there

is Wlliams Rule theory. That's one of the things that

keeps lurking in my mnd is that we m ght be getting to

the point where we're trying the defendant in this case

on some other case and | just want to caution on that

that 1’mnot trying that case.
However, the judge overrul ed the defense objection (R 1996-97).
The judge made two ot her coments about the prejudice resulting
fromthe State’s presentation of the victinms testinmny (R
2008). He finally said, “listening to [Gail Flemm ng] today
concerns me that this is going to - -that she’'s kind of a voice
fromthe grave.” (R 2097). The State cashed in on the
prejudicial testinony at closing argunent (R 2133-34, 2136- 38,
2142). Trial counsel repeatedly objected to the State’' s cl osing
as irrelevant, prejudicial, and non-statutory aggravating
circunstances. Although the trial court acknow edged that “we’'re
trying the case in Savannah, not this one” (R 2139), the trial

court overruled the defense objections.

Despite these fundanental constitutional errors, Judge
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Bronson found this claimto be without nerit and procedurally
barred (PC-R 2507).

The i nmproper evidence violated M. Vining's rights under the
Si xth, Eighth and Fourteenth Amendnents to the United States
Constitution. Individually, these errors render M. Vining s

penalty phase fundanentally unfair. See, Ruiz v. State, 743 So.

2d 1 (Fla. 1999); Martinez v. State, 2000 W. 766454 (Fla. 2000).

When considered cunul atively, the errors resulted in a denial of

due process. Derden v. NcNeel, 938 F. 2d 605 (5" Cir. 1991).

Thi s conduct by the prosecutor in conjunction with the
extensive Brady violations in w thhol ding excul patory evi dence
render M. Vining's trial fundanentally unfair. See, Argunent I.
A new trial is warranted.

ARGUMENT XI | | —=PUBLI C RECORDS

A full and fair evidentiary hearing was not held on the
public records claim The files and records do not concl usively
show that M. Vining is not entitled to relief on this claim It
appears obvious fromthe records that the | evel of cooperation
bet ween CCRC and Ms. Coffman of the Orange County State
Attorney’'s O fice was non-existent. Undersigned counsel took
over M. Vining s case on February 26, 1998. WMany public records
were not provided to M. Vining that are routinely provided to
other inmates. M. Vining s case has suffered because he was not

provided with records that are normally provided to defendants in
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postconviction proceedings. See, Mrdenti v. State, 711 So. 2d

30 (Fla. 1998).

For exanple, a records custodian from Fl ori da Departnment of
Law Enf orcenent (FDLE) testified at the public records hearing
that there were records that she brought to court that counsel
had never seen before. However, upon her return to the FDLE
office in Tall ahassee, she sent a letter stating that all records
had been provided. This cannot be true because a portion of the
records she brought with her to the public records hearing had
never been disclosed to M. Vining. The significance of this
om ssion is that M. Vining is prevented frominvestigating any
evi dence contained in those files.

FDLE exam ned the physical evidence in this case, including
the hair that allegedly inplicated M. Vining. FDLE s
exam nati on of the physical evidence was the basis for the court
granting the state’s request for an extension of the tinme on
speedy trial. Besides the questionable history of the dianond,
t he only physical evidence which allegedly linked M. Vining to
the crime was the handwiting analysis on a pawn slip and hair
analysis. M. Vining is prevented fromexploring the possibility
that the FDLE crinme |lab did not properly analyze the hand witing
and hair sanpl es. There is good cause to question the results
of the hair analysis because of the sheer number of hairs that

were allegedly found on the victinis body and the concl usi ons
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drawn by the lab technician. It is clear fromthe notes provided
by the state attorney’s office that the state had no intention of
calling the FDLE | ab technician until the last mnute. In
deposition, FDLE anal yst Dawn Rai nwater testified that three of
the hairs were consistent with the hair of M. Vining but there
were literally hundreds of hairs that were not consistent. Based
on the nunmber of hairs in the conparison sanples from M. Vining,
Ms. Rainwater’s testinony was flatly wong and not supported by
any scientifically valid proof. The state decided at the | ast
noment not to call Ms. Rainwater as a wi tness. However, the
notes contained in the state attorney’'s file regarding the
witness list do not indicate that Ms. Rainwater was going to
testify. To the contrary, the only notes on the witness |i st
regarding hair analysis is a handwitten note at the end of the
list. The State’'s basis for getting an extension of time on the
speedy trial was false. Failure to effectively argue this issue
before the trial court was deficient performance.

In addition, nost of the FDLE crinme |ab technicians, such as
Ms. Rainwater, were trained by the FBI crinme |Iab in Wshi ngton
D.C. Since the time of M. Vining s trial, the results and
scientific nethods of the FBI crime |ab have been under
i nvestigation by the Ofice of the Inspector General (OG for
such practices as poor |ab technique, exaggeration of results to

fit the state’s case and false testinony. The FDLE | ab
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technicians were trained using the sane techni ques and controls
t hat were taught by the FBI crine | ab personnel who have been
di scredited by the OG

Equally inportant to the Brady claimis the access to the
not ebooks of the investigating officers in the case. Detective
Nazur chuk’ s notes have been provided to defense counsel however,
no other officer’s notes have been forthcom ng. This case was
an unsol ved nmurder for two years before an arrest was made. It
is reasonable to assume that other officer’s kept investigative
not ebooks or notes on the investigation of this case. This
should be true particularly where two ot her bodies were found at
the sanme | ocation as Ms. Caruso and a string of jewelry robberies
had occurred before, during and after M. Vining's arrest. None
of this was disclosed to postconviction counsel. It is obvious
that other materials exist that have not been turned over to M.
Vi ni ng.

Because so many records are outstanding, it is difficult to
assess the true nature of the issues, even those limted issues
that the court granted an evidentiary hearing. Even though
Chapter 119 hearings took place on notions to conpel, the
litigation was not conpl eted when undersi gned counsel took over
the case. Judge Bronson granted CCRC | eave to take depositions
of these agenci es but those depositions were never taken. Now

both the Assistant State Attorney, Paula Coffman, and CCRC are no
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| onger on the case. It was error not to conplete this

litigation. See, Ventura v. State, 673 So. 2d 479 (Fla. 1996).

M. Vining is entitled to a hearing on this claim
ARGUMENT Xl V- CUMULATI VE ERROR
M. Vining did not receive the fundanmentally fair trial to
whi ch he was entitled under the Ei ghth and Fourteenth Amendnents.

See, Heath v. Jones, 941 F.2d 1126 (11th Cir. 1991); Derden v.

McNeel , 938 F.2d 605 (5th Cir. 1991). The process failed because
t he sheer number and types of errors involved in his trial, when
considered as a whole, virtually dictated the sentence that he
woul d receive.

Repeat ed i nstances of ineffective assistance of counsel and
error by the trial court at both the original trial tainted the
process. These errors cannot be harm ess. The cunul ative effect
of these errors was to deny M. Vining his fundanental rights and

vitiate his trial. State v. DeGuilio, 491 So. 2d 1129 (Fla.

1986), Taylor v. State, 640 So. 2d 1127 (Fla. 1st DCA 1994);

Stewart v. State, 622 So. 2d 51 (Fla. 5th DCA 1993); Landry v.
State, 620 So. 2d 1099 (Fla. 4th DCA 1993). The errors in M.
Vining's trial, sentencing, and direct appeal deprived him of
effective assistance of counsel, his right to counsel, a
fundamentally fair trial, due process of law, and individualized
sentenci ng under the Sixth, Eighth, and Fourteenth Amendnents to

the United States Constitution and those correspondi ng anendnents
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in the Constitution of the State of Florida.

CONCLUSI ON

M. Vining is innocent and submts that relief is warranted
in the formof a newtrial. At a mninmum an evidentiary hearing
shoul d be ordered on the clainms he was not afforded an
opportunity to present evidence.
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